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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024. 

 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The Company is principally engaged in the business of conducting public and in-house 
seminars, forums and related training programmes. 

The Company was dormant during the financial year. 

 
RESULTS 

RM 
 

Profit after tax for the year 271,401 
 
 

DIVIDENDS 

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous 
financial year. The directors do not recommend any dividend payment for the current 
financial year. 

 
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS 

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year. 

 
SHARE OPTIONS 

No options have been granted by the Company to any parties during the financial year to take 
up unissued shares of the Company. 

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of any option to 
take up unissued shares of the Company. As at the end of the financial year, there were no 
unissued shares of the Company under options. 

 
SHARES AND DEBENTURES 

The Company did not issue any new shares or debentures during the financial year. 
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DIRECTORS 

The directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this 
report are: 

 
MOHAMED ACKIEL MOHAMED Resigned on 26.09.2024 
CHEW KHOON HEE  Resigned on 26.09.2024 
WONG WING KIONG Appointed on 26.09.2024 
ONG HOCK GUAN Appointed on 26.09.2024 
TAY CHIA CHAY Appointed on 26.09.2024 

 
 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 
 

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at 
the end of the financial year in the ordinary shares of the Company during the financial year 
were as follows: 

 
Number of ordinary shares 

 As at 
1.1.2024 

 
Bought 

 
Sold 

As at 
31.12.2024 

CHEW KHOON HEE - - - - 
MOHAMED ACKIEL MOHAMED - - - - 
WONG WING KIONG - - - - 
ONG HOCK GUAN - - - - 
TAY CHIA CHAY - - - - 

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS 
    

Since the end of the previous financial year, no directors has received or become entitled to 
receive any benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation 
with any director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in 
which the director has a substantial financial interest except for the related party transactions 
as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. 

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company 
is a party, with the objects of enabling directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means 
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. 
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 

 
(a) Before the financial statements of the Company were prepared, the directors took 

reasonable steps: 

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of 
bad debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts and have satisfied 
themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate 
allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and 

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised at their 
book values in the ordinary course of business have been written down to their 
estimated realisable value. 

(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which 
would render: 

(i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for 
doubtful debts inadequate to any substantial extent in the financial statements 
of the Company; or 

(ii) the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the 
Company misleading. 

(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have 
arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or 
liabilities of the Company misleading or inappropriate. 

(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not 
otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Company which 
would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading. 

(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist: 

(i) any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or 

(ii) any contingent liability of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year. 

(f) In the opinion of the directors: 

(i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial 
year which will or may substantially affect the ability of the Company to meet 
its obligations as and when they fall due; and 

(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the 
interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which 
is likely to affect substantially the results of operations of the Company for the 
financial year in which this report is made. 
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS 

None of directors or past directors of the Company have received any remunerations from the 
Company during the financial year. 

 
INDEMNIFYING DIRECTORS, OFFICERS OR AUDITORS 

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the 
financial year, for any person who is or has been the director, officer or auditor of the 
Company. 

 
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS 

Total amount paid to or receivable by the auditors as remuneration for their statutory audit 
services as auditors for the financial year is RM2,000. 
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AUDITORS 

The auditors, K.L. NG & CO., have expressed their willingness to be re-appointed. 

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
ONG HOCK GUAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TAY CHIA CHAY 

 
Date : 
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS 
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016 

 
We, ONG HOCK GUAN and TAY CHIA CHAY, being two of the directors of IMM 
RESOURCES SDN. BHD., do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the 
accompanying financial statements comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are drawn up in accordance with 
the Malaysian Private Entities Reporting Standard issued by the Malaysian Accounting 
Standards Board and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

 
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 

 
 
 
 

ONG HOCK GUAN TAY CHIA CHAY 
 

Date : 
 

STATUTORY DECLARATION 
Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016 

 
I, ONG HOCK GUAN (I.C No. : 600228-13-5577), being the director primarily responsible 
for the financial management of IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD., do solemnly and sincerely 
declare that the accompanying financial statements comprising the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are in my 
opinion correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be 
true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960. 

 

Subscribed and solemnly declared by 
the abovenamed ONG HOCK GUAN 
at Petaling Jaya in Selangor 
on 

 
Before me, 

 
 
 

 
TAY CHIA CHAY 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS 



K.L. NG & CO. (AF 1478) 
Chartered Accountants 
921, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor 
Darul Ehsan. 
Tel : 03-7887 8895 / 7787 9527, Email: nklgroup@live.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited financial statements of IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Private Entities Reporting 
Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, 
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and 
IESBA Code. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 3.1 to the financial statements which state that the accompanying 
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the 
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business, despite the 
Company has net current liabilities of RM66,537 and a capital deficiency of RM59,218 as at 31 
December 2024. Continuance of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the 
continued financial support from its shareholders. 

 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements of the Company 
and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the Directors’ Report 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to 
read the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Directors’ Report is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
the Directors’ Report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the 
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Malaysian Private Entities 
Reporting Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors 
are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements of the Company that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the 
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards 
on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the 
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the 
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
 

Other Matters 
 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

K.L. NG & CO. NG KUAN LOONG 
AF 1478 02195/01/2027 J 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant 

 
Petaling Jaya 
Date: 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

 Note 2024  2023 
ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, plant and equipment 

 

 
5 

RM 
 

7,319 

 RM 
 

10,774 
  7,319  10,774 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Trade receivables 

  
 

121,150 

  
 

- 
Cash and bank balances  143,663  4,121 

  264,813  4,121 

TOTAL ASSETS  272,132  14,895 
 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

    

EQUITY 
Contributed share capital 

 
6 

 
100,000 

  
100,000 

Accumulated losses  (159,218)  (430,619) 
TOTAL EQUITY  (59,218)  (330,619) 

 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Other payables and accruals 

 

 
7 

 

 
331,350 

  

 
345,514 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  331,350  345,514 
 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

  
272,132 

  
14,895 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 

Note 
2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

 
Revenue 

  
305,010 

  
- 

Cost of sales   (19,619)   -  
Gross profit/(loss)  285,391  - 
Selling and administrative expenses  (10,535)  (5,335) 
Other expenses 8  (3,455)   (4,638) 
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 
Tax expense 

 
9 

271,401 
- 

 (9,973) 
- 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  271,401  (9,973) 
Other comprehensive income   -    -  
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year   271,401    (9,973) 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

Contributed 
share capital 

Accumulated 
losses Total 

2023 RM RM RM 

 
Balance at 1 January 2023 100,000 (420,646) (320,646) 
Loss for the year - (9,973) (9,973) 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 
Balance at 31 December 2023 100,000 (430,619) (330,619) 

 
 

 
Contributed 

share capital 

Retained 
profits/ 

(Accumulated 
losses) Total 

2024 RM RM RM 
 

Balance at 1 January 2024 100,000 (430,619) (330,619) 
Profit for the year - 271,401 271,401 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 
Balance at 31 December 2024 100,000 (159,218) (59,218) 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

2024 2023 
Note RM RM 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from customers 183,860 

 
- 

Cash payments to employees and for expenses  (44,318)  (16) 
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities  139,542   (16) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 139,542 (16) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  4,121   4,137  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 143,663 4,121 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Company is a private company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The 
principal activity of the Company is conducting public and in-house seminars, forums 
and related training programmes. There has been no significant change in the nature 
of the principal activity of the Company during the financial year. 

The registered office of the Company is located at 919, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, 
No. 3, Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor. 

The principal place of business is located at Suite 1006, Level 10, Block A, Kelana 
Centre Point, No. 3 Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor. 

 
2. COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND THE 

COMPANIES ACT 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Malaysian 
Private Entities Reporting Standard issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
Board and the provisions of the Malaysian Companies Act 2016. 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1 Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared: 
 

(a) using cost and fair value bases; and 
 

(b) by applying the going concern assumption as it is the intention of the 
Company to carry on with the existing business activity, notwithstanding 
that the Company incurred accumulated losses of RM159,218 as 31 
December 2024, and as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities 
exceeded its current assets by RM66,567 thereby indicating the existence 
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the 
Company’s ability to continue as going concern. 

 
3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Operating tangible assets that are used for more than one accounting period in 
the production and supply of goods and services, for administrative purposes 
or for rental to others are recognised as property, plant and equipment when 
the Company obtains control of the assets. The assets, including major spares, 
servicing equipment and stand-by equipment, are classified into appropriate 
classes based on their nature. Any subsequent replacement of a significant 
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component in an existing asset is capitalised as a new component in the asset 
and the old component is derecognised. 

All property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. For a 
purchased asset, cost comprises purchase price plus all directly attributable 
costs incurred in bringing the asset to its present location and condition for 
management’s intended use. For a self-constructed asset, cost comprises all 
direct and indirect costs of construction (including provision for restoration 
and cost of major inspection) but excludes internal profits. 

All property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Freehold land and capital work-in-progress are not depreciated but are subject 
to impairment test if there is any indication of impairment. 

 
All other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is 
calculated on the straight line basis to write off the cost of the assets over their 
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:- 

Computer 20% 
Equipment 10% 

At the end of each reporting period, the residual values, useful lives and 
depreciation methods for the property, plant and equipment are reviewed for 
reasonableness. Any change in estimate of an item is adjusted prospectively 
over its remaining useful life. 

3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
include cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in fair value, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts and pledged deposits. 

3.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

An impairment loss arises when the carrying amount of a Company’s asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 

 
At the end of each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any 
indication that a stand-alone asset or a cash-generating unit may be impaired 
by using external and internal sources of information. If any such indication 
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or cash- 
generating unit. 



IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 
200001030502 (533109-M) 

18 

 

 

 
If an individual asset generates independent cash inflows, it is tested for 
impairment as a stand-alone asset. If an asset does not generate independent 
cash inflows, it is tested for impairment together with other assets in a cash- 
generating unit, at the lowest level in which independent cash inflows are 
generated and monitored for internal management purposes. 

 
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of 
its fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. The Company determines 
the fair value less costs to sell of an asset or a cash-generating unit in a 
hierarchy based on: (i) price in a binding sale agreement; (ii) market price 
traded in an active market; and (iii) estimate of market price using the best 
available information. The value in use is estimated by discounting the net 
cash inflows (by an appropriate discount rate) of the asset or unit, using 
reasonable and supportable management’s budgets and forecasts of five years 
and extrapolation of cash inflows for periods beyond the five-year forecast or 
budget. 

For an asset measured on a cost-based model, any impairment loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

 
For a cash-generating unit, any impairment loss is allocated to the assets of the 
unit pro rata based on the relative carrying amounts of the assets. 

 
The Company reassesses the recoverable amount of an impaired asset or a 
cash-generating unit if there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised previously may have reversed. Any reversal of impairment loss for 
an asset carried at a cost-based model is recognised in profit or loss, subject to 
the limit that the revised carrying amount does not exceed the amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised 
previously. 

 
3.5 Contributed Share Capital and Distributions 

(a) Contributed Share Capital 
 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments. 
 

When ordinary shares are issued to existing shareholders, they are recorded at 
the issue price. For ordinary shares issued in exchange for non-monetary 
assets, they are measured by reference to the fair values of the assets received. 

 
When ordinary shares are issued as consideration transferred in a business 
combination or as settlement of an existing financial liability, they are 
measured at their fair value at the date of the exchange transaction. 

 
Transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction 
from equity, net of any related income tax effect. 
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(b) Distributions 

 
Distributions to holders of an equity instrument are recognised as equity 
transactions and are debited directly in equity, net of any related income tax 
effect. 

 
A dividend declared is recognised as a liability only after it has been 
appropriately authorised, which is the date when the Board of Directors 
declares an interim dividend, or in the case of a proposed final dividend, the 
date the shareholders of the Company approve the proposed final dividend. 
For a distribution of non-cash assets to owners, the Company measures the 
dividend payable at the fair value of the assets to be distributed. 

3.6 Financial Instruments 

(a) Initial Recognition and Measurement 
 

The Company recognises a financial asset or a financial liability (including 
derivative instruments) in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 
On initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities are measured 
at fair value, which is generally the transaction price, plus transaction costs if 
the financial asset or financial liability is not measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. For instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss when incurred. 

 
(b) Derecognition of Financial Instruments 

 
A financial asset is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights 
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the Company 
transfers the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, 
including circumstances when the Company acts only as a collecting agent of 
the transferee, and retains no significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset or no continuing involvement in the control of the financial 
asset transferred. 

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, it is legally 
extinguished, which is either when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. A substantial modification of the terms of 
an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the 
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. 

 
(c) Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets 

 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies financial 
assets into two categories, namely: (i) financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss, and (ii) financial assets at amortised cost. 
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After initial recognition, investments in preference shares and ordinary shares 
are measured at their fair values by reference to the active market price, if 
observable, or otherwise by a valuation technique, without any deduction for 
transaction costs it may incur on sale or other disposal. 

 
Investments in debt instruments, whether quoted or unquoted, are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Investments in unquoted equity instruments and whose fair value cannot be 
reliably measured are measured at cost. 
Other than financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, all 
other financial assets are subject to review for impairment in accordance with 
Note 3.6(g). 

 
(d) Subsequent Measurement 

 
After initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. 

 
(e) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments 

 
The fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability is determined by 
reference to the quoted market price in an active market, and in the absence of 
an observable market price, by a valuation technique using reasonable and 
supportable assumptions. 

 
(f) Recognition of Gains and Losses 

 
Fair value changes of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as at 
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss when they 
arise. 

 
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost, a gain or 
loss is recognised in profit or loss only when the financial asset or financial 
liability is derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process of 
the instrument. 

 
(g) Impairment and Uncollectibility of Financial Assets 

 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company examines whether there is 
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
impaired. Evidences of trigger loss events include: (i) significant difficulty of 
the issuer or obligor; (ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency 
in interest or principal payments; (iii) granting exceptional concession to a 
customer; (iv) it is probable that a customer will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganisation; (v) the disappearance of an active market for that 
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or (vi) any observable market 
data indicating that there may be a measurable decrease in the estimated future 
cash flows from a group of financial assets. 
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For a non-current loan and receivable carried at amortised cost, the revised 
estimated cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate. Any 
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and a corresponding amount is 
recorded in a loss allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of impairment 
loss of the financial asset is reversed in profit or loss with a corresponding 
adjustment to the loss allowance account, subject to the limit that the reversal 
should not result in the revised carrying amount of the financial asset 
exceeding the amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised previously. 

For short-term trade and other receivables, where the effect of discounting is 
immaterial, impairment loss is tested for each individually significant 
receivable wherever there is any indication of impairment. Individually 
significant receivables for which no impairment loss is recognised are grouped 
together with all other receivables by classes based on credit risk 
characteristics and aged according to their past due periods. A collective 
allowance is estimated for a class group based on the Company’s experience 
of loss ratio in each class, taking into consideration current market conditions. 

For an unquoted equity investment measured at cost less impairment, the 
impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the best 
estimate (which will necessarily be an approximation) of the amount (which 
might be zero) that the Company expects to receive for the asset if it were sold 

 
at the reporting date. The Company may estimate the recoverable amount 
using an adjusted net asset value approach. 

 
3.7 Revenue Recognition and Measurement 

The Company measures revenue from a sale of goods or a service transaction at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is usually the 
invoice price, net of any trade discounts and volume rebates given to a customer 
in a sale or service transaction. 

Revenue from a sale of goods and services rendered are recognised when: 

(i) the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of the goods and upon the completion of services rendered; 

(ii) the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the 
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the 
goods sold; 

(iii) the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; 

(iv) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction 
will flow to the Company; and 

(v) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be 
measured reliably. 
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3.8 Income Tax 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the financial period comprises current and 
deferred tax. Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in 
respect of the taxable profit for the year and is measured using the tax rates that 
have been enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences 
at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. In principle, deferred tax 
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits can be utilised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred 
tax is recognised in the income statement, except when it arises from a transaction 
which is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also 
recognised directly in equity. 

3.9 Employees Benefits 

a) Short term benefits 
 

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised 
as an expense in the financial period/year in which the associated services 
are rendered by employees of the Company. 

 
b) Defined contribution plans 

 
The Company makes statutory contributions to approved provident funds 
and the contributions made are charged to profit or loss in the period to 
which they relate. When the contributions have been paid, the Company 
has no further payment obligations. 

 
3.10 Provisions 

 
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, 
as a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of economic 
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation 
can be estimated reliably. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an 
outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the 
provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest 
expenses. 
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

 
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the 
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
the asset or liability affected in the future. 

 
4.1  Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies 

 
There were no significant judgements made by management in the process of 
applying the accounting policies of the Company which may have significant effect 
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

 
4.2  Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year are discussed below. 

 
a) Determining the Value-in-Use 

 
In determining the value-in-use of a stand-alone asset or a cash-generating unit, 
management uses reasonable and supportable inputs about sales, costs of sales and 
other expenses based upon past experiences, current events and reasonably possible 
future developments. Cash flows are projected based on those inputs and discounted 
at an appropriate discount rate(s). The actual outcome or event may not coincide with 
the inputs or assumptions and the discount rate applied in the measurement, and this 
may have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position and results. 

b) Loss Allowances of Financial Assets 
 

The Company recognises impairment losses for loans and receivables using the 
incurred loss model. Individually significant loans and receivables are tested for 
impairment separately by estimating the cash flows expected to be recoverable. All 
other loans and receivables are categorised into credit risk classes and tested for 
impairment collectively, using the Company’s past experiences of loss statistics, 
ageing of past due amounts and current economic trends. The actual eventual losses 
may be different from the allowances made and these may affect the Company’s 
financial position and results. 
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c) Measurement of a Provision 

 
The Company uses a “best estimate” as the basis for measuring a provision. 
Management evaluates the estimates based on the Company’s historical experiences 
and other inputs or assumptions, current developments and future events that are 
reasonably possible under the particular circumstances. In the case when a provision 
relates to large population of customers (such as warranty provision), a probability- 
weighted estimate of the outflows required to settle the obligation is used. In the case 
of a single estimate (such as a provision for environmental restoration costs), a 
referenced contractor’s price or market price is used as the best estimate. If an 
obligation is to be settled over time, the expected outflows are discounted at a rate that 
takes into account the time value of money and the risk that the actual outcome might 
differ from the estimates made. The actual outcome may differ from the estimate 
made and this may have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position and 
results. 

 
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 
 Balance at   Balance at 

1.1.2024 
RM 

Additions 
RM 

Disposals 
RM 

31.12.2024 
RM 

Cost 
Computer 

 
14,518 

 
- 

 
- 

 
14,518 

Equipment 24,380 - - 24,380 
 38,898 - - 38,898 

 

Balance at 
1.1.2024 

Additions 
for the year Disposals 

Balance at 
31.12.2024 

RM RM RM RM 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss 
Computer 13,496 1,017 - 14,513 
Equipment 14,628 2,438 - 17,066 

 28,124 3,455 - 31,579 
 

2024 2023 
 RM RM 
Net carrying amount   
Computer 5 1,022 
Equipment 7,314 9,752 

 7,319 10,774  
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6. CONTRIBUTED SHARE CAPITAL  

 2024  2023 
 RM  RM 

Issued and fully paid:    

At beginning and end of year 
100,000 ordinary shares with no par value 

 
 100,000  

  
 100,000  

 
7. OTHER PAYABES AND ACCRUALS 

   

 2024  2023 
 RM  RM 

Amounts owing to related party 247,231 
 

253,811 
Third parties 21,642  27,145 
Accruals 62,477  64,558 

  331,350    345,514  

The amounts owing to related party represent advances and payment on behalf which 
are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and are to be settled in 
cash. 

 
8. OTHER EXPENSES 

 
2024 2023 
RM RM 

 
Depreciation of property, plant equipment  3,455   4,638  

 3,455   4,638  
 
 
 

9. TAX EXPENSE  
  2024 2023 
  RM RM 

 Current income tax expense 
Total tax expense for the year 

 -  
 -  

 -  
 -  
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9. TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 

 
The significant differences between the tax expense and accounting profit/(loss) 
multiplied by the statutory tax rate are due to the tax effects arising from the 
following items: 

 
 2024 

RM 
2023 
RM 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 271,401 (9,973) 
 
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 17% (2023:15%) 

 
46,155 

 
(1,496) 

Tax effects of : 
- reduced tax rate of 15% 

 
(3,000) 

 
- 

- expenses disallowed for tax purpose 798 1,496 
- utilisation of unrecognised deferred tax assets (43,953) - 
Effective tax expense 

 

 -  
 

 -  

As at financial year end, the Company has 

 

unabsorbed  capital 

 

allowance  of 
approximately RM Nil (2023: RM28,530) and unutilised tax losses of approximately 
RM330,743 (2023: RM586,260) which, subject to the agreement with the tax 
authority, are available to set off against future taxable profits. 

 
 

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise: 
 

 2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

Cash and bank balances  143,663   4,121  
Cash and cash equivalents  143,663   4,121  
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11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 

 
As at financial year end, the Company has deferred tax assets arising from the 
following, which is not recognised in financial statements until such time the directors 
are satisfied that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future against which 
the deferred tax assets can be utilised. 

 
 2024 

RM 
 2023 

RM 

Taxable temporary difference (4,881)  (4,876) 
Unabsorbed capital allowance -  28,525 
Unutilised tax losses  330,743    586,259  

 325,862  609,908 

Deferred tax assets not recognised at 17%    

(2023: 15%)  55,397    91,486  
 

The availability of the unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowance for off- 
setting against future taxable profits are subject to no substantial changes in the 
shareholdings of the Company under Section 44(5A) of the Income Tax Act 1967. 

 
 

12. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements of the company were authorised for issue by the Board of 
Directors on the same date as the date of Directors’ Report is being approved. 
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 2024 

RM 
 2023 

RM 
 

REVENUE 305,010 
  

- 

LESS : COST OF SALES 
    

Courier and postage 37   - 
Exam assesment facility 8,400   - 
Examiner fee and expenses 8,220    
Marker fee 2,796   - 
Printing and stationery 111   - 
Travelling expenses 55   - 

 19,619   -  

GROSS PROFIT 285,391 - 
 

 
LESS : OPERATING EXPENSES 
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

 
(10,535) 

 
(5,335) 

OTHER EXPENSES  (3,455)  (4,638) 

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION  271,401   (9,973) 
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SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES    

Management and admin    
Auditors' remuneration 2,000  1,000 
Bank charges 98  16 
IT web maintenance 485  - 
Postage and courier 120  120 
Printing and stationery 200  520 
Secretarial and filing fee 5,930  2,660 
Service tax 172  129 
Tax fee 1,400  700 
Travelling expenses 130  190 

 10,535  5,335 
 

OTHER EXPENSES 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,455 4,638 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024. 

 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The Company is principally engaged in the business of conducting public and in-house 
seminars, forums and related training programmes. 

The Company was dormant during the financial year. 

 
RESULTS 

RM 
 

Profit after tax for the year 271,401 
 
 

DIVIDENDS 

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous 
financial year. The directors do not recommend any dividend payment for the current 
financial year. 

 
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS 

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year. 

 
SHARE OPTIONS 

No options have been granted by the Company to any parties during the financial year to take 
up unissued shares of the Company. 

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of any option to 
take up unissued shares of the Company. As at the end of the financial year, there were no 
unissued shares of the Company under options. 

 
SHARES AND DEBENTURES 

The Company did not issue any new shares or debentures during the financial year. 
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DIRECTORS 

The directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this 
report are: 

 
MOHAMED ACKIEL MOHAMED Resigned on 26.09.2024 
CHEW KHOON HEE  Resigned on 26.09.2024 
WONG WING KIONG Appointed on 26.09.2024 
ONG HOCK GUAN Appointed on 26.09.2024 
TAY CHIA CHAY Appointed on 26.09.2024 

 
 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 
 

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at 
the end of the financial year in the ordinary shares of the Company during the financial year 
were as follows: 

 
Number of ordinary shares 

 As at 
1.1.2024 

 
Bought 

 
Sold 

As at 
31.12.2024 

CHEW KHOON HEE - - - - 
MOHAMED ACKIEL MOHAMED - - - - 
WONG WING KIONG - - - - 
ONG HOCK GUAN - - - - 
TAY CHIA CHAY - - - - 

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS 
    

Since the end of the previous financial year, no directors has received or become entitled to 
receive any benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation 
with any director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in 
which the director has a substantial financial interest except for the related party transactions 
as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. 

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company 
is a party, with the objects of enabling directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means 
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. 
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 

 
(a) Before the financial statements of the Company were prepared, the directors took 

reasonable steps: 

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of 
bad debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts and have satisfied 
themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate 
allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and 

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised at their 
book values in the ordinary course of business have been written down to their 
estimated realisable value. 

(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which 
would render: 

(i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for 
doubtful debts inadequate to any substantial extent in the financial statements 
of the Company; or 

(ii) the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the 
Company misleading. 

(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have 
arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or 
liabilities of the Company misleading or inappropriate. 

(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not 
otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Company which 
would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading. 

(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist: 

(i) any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or 

(ii) any contingent liability of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year. 

(f) In the opinion of the directors: 

(i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial 
year which will or may substantially affect the ability of the Company to meet 
its obligations as and when they fall due; and 

(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the 
interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which 
is likely to affect substantially the results of operations of the Company for the 
financial year in which this report is made. 
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS 

None of directors or past directors of the Company have received any remunerations from the 
Company during the financial year. 

 
INDEMNIFYING DIRECTORS, OFFICERS OR AUDITORS 

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the 
financial year, for any person who is or has been the director, officer or auditor of the 
Company. 

 
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS 

Total amount paid to or receivable by the auditors as remuneration for their statutory audit 
services as auditors for the financial year is RM2,000. 
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AUDITORS 

The auditors, K.L. NG & CO., have expressed their willingness to be re-appointed. 

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
ONG HOCK GUAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TAY CHIA CHAY 

 
Date : 



6 

 

 

IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 
200001030502 (533109-M) 

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS 
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016 

 
We, ONG HOCK GUAN and TAY CHIA CHAY, being two of the directors of IMM 
RESOURCES SDN. BHD., do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the 
accompanying financial statements comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are drawn up in accordance with 
the Malaysian Private Entities Reporting Standard issued by the Malaysian Accounting 
Standards Board and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

 
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 

 
 
 
 

ONG HOCK GUAN TAY CHIA CHAY 
 

Date : 
 

STATUTORY DECLARATION 
Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016 

 
I, ONG HOCK GUAN (I.C No. : 600228-13-5577), being the director primarily responsible 
for the financial management of IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD., do solemnly and sincerely 
declare that the accompanying financial statements comprising the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are in my 
opinion correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be 
true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960. 

 

Subscribed and solemnly declared by 
the abovenamed ONG HOCK GUAN 
at Petaling Jaya in Selangor 
on 

 
Before me, 

 
 
 

 
TAY CHIA CHAY 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS 



K.L. NG & CO. (AF 1478) 
Chartered Accountants 
921, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor 
Darul Ehsan. 
Tel : 03-7887 8895 / 7787 9527, Email: nklgroup@live.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited financial statements of IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Private Entities Reporting 
Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, 
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and 
IESBA Code. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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Chartered Accountants 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 3.1 to the financial statements which state that the accompanying 
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the 
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business, despite the 
Company has net current liabilities of RM66,537 and a capital deficiency of RM59,218 as at 31 
December 2024. Continuance of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the 
continued financial support from its shareholders. 

 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements of the Company 
and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the Directors’ Report 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to 
read the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Directors’ Report is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
the Directors’ Report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the 
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Malaysian Private Entities 
Reporting Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors 
are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements of the Company that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the 
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards 
on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the 
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the 
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
 

Other Matters 
 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

K.L. NG & CO. NG KUAN LOONG 
AF 1478 02195/01/2027 J 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant 

 
Petaling Jaya 
Date: 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

 Note 2024  2023 
ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, plant and equipment 

 

 
5 

RM 
 

7,319 

 RM 
 

10,774 
  7,319  10,774 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Trade receivables 

  
 

121,150 

  
 

- 
Cash and bank balances  143,663  4,121 

  264,813  4,121 

TOTAL ASSETS  272,132  14,895 
 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

    

EQUITY 
Contributed share capital 

 
6 

 
100,000 

  
100,000 

Accumulated losses  (159,218)  (430,619) 
TOTAL EQUITY  (59,218)  (330,619) 

 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Other payables and accruals 

 

 
7 

 

 
331,350 

  

 
345,514 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  331,350  345,514 
 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

  
272,132 

  
14,895 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 

Note 
2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

 
Revenue 

  
305,010 

  
- 

Cost of sales   (19,619)   -  
Gross profit/(loss)  285,391  - 
Selling and administrative expenses  (10,535)  (5,335) 
Other expenses 8  (3,455)   (4,638) 
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 
Tax expense 

 
9 

271,401 
- 

 (9,973) 
- 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  271,401  (9,973) 
Other comprehensive income   -    -  
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year   271,401    (9,973) 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

Contributed 
share capital 

Accumulated 
losses Total 

2023 RM RM RM 

 
Balance at 1 January 2023 100,000 (420,646) (320,646) 
Loss for the year - (9,973) (9,973) 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 
Balance at 31 December 2023 100,000 (430,619) (330,619) 

 
 

 
Contributed 

share capital 

Retained 
profits/ 

(Accumulated 
losses) Total 

2024 RM RM RM 
 

Balance at 1 January 2024 100,000 (430,619) (330,619) 
Profit for the year - 271,401 271,401 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 
Balance at 31 December 2024 100,000 (159,218) (59,218) 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

2024 2023 
Note RM RM 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from customers 183,860 

 
- 

Cash payments to employees and for expenses  (44,318)  (16) 
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities  139,542   (16) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 139,542 (16) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  4,121   4,137  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 143,663 4,121 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Company is a private company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The 
principal activity of the Company is conducting public and in-house seminars, forums 
and related training programmes. There has been no significant change in the nature 
of the principal activity of the Company during the financial year. 

The registered office of the Company is located at 919, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, 
No. 3, Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor. 

The principal place of business is located at Suite 1006, Level 10, Block A, Kelana 
Centre Point, No. 3 Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor. 

 
2. COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND THE 

COMPANIES ACT 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Malaysian 
Private Entities Reporting Standard issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
Board and the provisions of the Malaysian Companies Act 2016. 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1 Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared: 
 

(a) using cost and fair value bases; and 
 

(b) by applying the going concern assumption as it is the intention of the 
Company to carry on with the existing business activity, notwithstanding 
that the Company incurred accumulated losses of RM159,218 as 31 
December 2024, and as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities 
exceeded its current assets by RM66,567 thereby indicating the existence 
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the 
Company’s ability to continue as going concern. 

 
3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Operating tangible assets that are used for more than one accounting period in 
the production and supply of goods and services, for administrative purposes 
or for rental to others are recognised as property, plant and equipment when 
the Company obtains control of the assets. The assets, including major spares, 
servicing equipment and stand-by equipment, are classified into appropriate 
classes based on their nature. Any subsequent replacement of a significant 
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component in an existing asset is capitalised as a new component in the asset 
and the old component is derecognised. 

All property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. For a 
purchased asset, cost comprises purchase price plus all directly attributable 
costs incurred in bringing the asset to its present location and condition for 
management’s intended use. For a self-constructed asset, cost comprises all 
direct and indirect costs of construction (including provision for restoration 
and cost of major inspection) but excludes internal profits. 

All property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Freehold land and capital work-in-progress are not depreciated but are subject 
to impairment test if there is any indication of impairment. 

 
All other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is 
calculated on the straight line basis to write off the cost of the assets over their 
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:- 

Computer 20% 
Equipment 10% 

At the end of each reporting period, the residual values, useful lives and 
depreciation methods for the property, plant and equipment are reviewed for 
reasonableness. Any change in estimate of an item is adjusted prospectively 
over its remaining useful life. 

3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
include cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in fair value, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts and pledged deposits. 

3.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

An impairment loss arises when the carrying amount of a Company’s asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 

 
At the end of each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any 
indication that a stand-alone asset or a cash-generating unit may be impaired 
by using external and internal sources of information. If any such indication 
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or cash- 
generating unit. 
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If an individual asset generates independent cash inflows, it is tested for 
impairment as a stand-alone asset. If an asset does not generate independent 
cash inflows, it is tested for impairment together with other assets in a cash- 
generating unit, at the lowest level in which independent cash inflows are 
generated and monitored for internal management purposes. 

 
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of 
its fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. The Company determines 
the fair value less costs to sell of an asset or a cash-generating unit in a 
hierarchy based on: (i) price in a binding sale agreement; (ii) market price 
traded in an active market; and (iii) estimate of market price using the best 
available information. The value in use is estimated by discounting the net 
cash inflows (by an appropriate discount rate) of the asset or unit, using 
reasonable and supportable management’s budgets and forecasts of five years 
and extrapolation of cash inflows for periods beyond the five-year forecast or 
budget. 

For an asset measured on a cost-based model, any impairment loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

 
For a cash-generating unit, any impairment loss is allocated to the assets of the 
unit pro rata based on the relative carrying amounts of the assets. 

 
The Company reassesses the recoverable amount of an impaired asset or a 
cash-generating unit if there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised previously may have reversed. Any reversal of impairment loss for 
an asset carried at a cost-based model is recognised in profit or loss, subject to 
the limit that the revised carrying amount does not exceed the amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised 
previously. 

 
3.5 Contributed Share Capital and Distributions 

(a) Contributed Share Capital 
 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments. 
 

When ordinary shares are issued to existing shareholders, they are recorded at 
the issue price. For ordinary shares issued in exchange for non-monetary 
assets, they are measured by reference to the fair values of the assets received. 

 
When ordinary shares are issued as consideration transferred in a business 
combination or as settlement of an existing financial liability, they are 
measured at their fair value at the date of the exchange transaction. 

 
Transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction 
from equity, net of any related income tax effect. 
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(b) Distributions 

 
Distributions to holders of an equity instrument are recognised as equity 
transactions and are debited directly in equity, net of any related income tax 
effect. 

 
A dividend declared is recognised as a liability only after it has been 
appropriately authorised, which is the date when the Board of Directors 
declares an interim dividend, or in the case of a proposed final dividend, the 
date the shareholders of the Company approve the proposed final dividend. 
For a distribution of non-cash assets to owners, the Company measures the 
dividend payable at the fair value of the assets to be distributed. 

3.6 Financial Instruments 

(a) Initial Recognition and Measurement 
 

The Company recognises a financial asset or a financial liability (including 
derivative instruments) in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 
On initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities are measured 
at fair value, which is generally the transaction price, plus transaction costs if 
the financial asset or financial liability is not measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. For instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss when incurred. 

 
(b) Derecognition of Financial Instruments 

 
A financial asset is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights 
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the Company 
transfers the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, 
including circumstances when the Company acts only as a collecting agent of 
the transferee, and retains no significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset or no continuing involvement in the control of the financial 
asset transferred. 

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, it is legally 
extinguished, which is either when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. A substantial modification of the terms of 
an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the 
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. 

 
(c) Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets 

 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies financial 
assets into two categories, namely: (i) financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss, and (ii) financial assets at amortised cost. 
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After initial recognition, investments in preference shares and ordinary shares 
are measured at their fair values by reference to the active market price, if 
observable, or otherwise by a valuation technique, without any deduction for 
transaction costs it may incur on sale or other disposal. 

 
Investments in debt instruments, whether quoted or unquoted, are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Investments in unquoted equity instruments and whose fair value cannot be 
reliably measured are measured at cost. 
Other than financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, all 
other financial assets are subject to review for impairment in accordance with 
Note 3.6(g). 

 
(d) Subsequent Measurement 

 
After initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. 

 
(e) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments 

 
The fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability is determined by 
reference to the quoted market price in an active market, and in the absence of 
an observable market price, by a valuation technique using reasonable and 
supportable assumptions. 

 
(f) Recognition of Gains and Losses 

 
Fair value changes of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as at 
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss when they 
arise. 

 
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost, a gain or 
loss is recognised in profit or loss only when the financial asset or financial 
liability is derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process of 
the instrument. 

 
(g) Impairment and Uncollectibility of Financial Assets 

 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company examines whether there is 
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
impaired. Evidences of trigger loss events include: (i) significant difficulty of 
the issuer or obligor; (ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency 
in interest or principal payments; (iii) granting exceptional concession to a 
customer; (iv) it is probable that a customer will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganisation; (v) the disappearance of an active market for that 
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or (vi) any observable market 
data indicating that there may be a measurable decrease in the estimated future 
cash flows from a group of financial assets. 
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For a non-current loan and receivable carried at amortised cost, the revised 
estimated cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate. Any 
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and a corresponding amount is 
recorded in a loss allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of impairment 
loss of the financial asset is reversed in profit or loss with a corresponding 
adjustment to the loss allowance account, subject to the limit that the reversal 
should not result in the revised carrying amount of the financial asset 
exceeding the amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised previously. 

For short-term trade and other receivables, where the effect of discounting is 
immaterial, impairment loss is tested for each individually significant 
receivable wherever there is any indication of impairment. Individually 
significant receivables for which no impairment loss is recognised are grouped 
together with all other receivables by classes based on credit risk 
characteristics and aged according to their past due periods. A collective 
allowance is estimated for a class group based on the Company’s experience 
of loss ratio in each class, taking into consideration current market conditions. 

For an unquoted equity investment measured at cost less impairment, the 
impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the best 
estimate (which will necessarily be an approximation) of the amount (which 
might be zero) that the Company expects to receive for the asset if it were sold 

 
at the reporting date. The Company may estimate the recoverable amount 
using an adjusted net asset value approach. 

 
3.7 Revenue Recognition and Measurement 

The Company measures revenue from a sale of goods or a service transaction at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is usually the 
invoice price, net of any trade discounts and volume rebates given to a customer 
in a sale or service transaction. 

Revenue from a sale of goods and services rendered are recognised when: 

(i) the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of the goods and upon the completion of services rendered; 

(ii) the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the 
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the 
goods sold; 

(iii) the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; 

(iv) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction 
will flow to the Company; and 

(v) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be 
measured reliably. 
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3.8 Income Tax 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the financial period comprises current and 
deferred tax. Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in 
respect of the taxable profit for the year and is measured using the tax rates that 
have been enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences 
at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. In principle, deferred tax 
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits can be utilised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred 
tax is recognised in the income statement, except when it arises from a transaction 
which is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also 
recognised directly in equity. 

3.9 Employees Benefits 

a) Short term benefits 
 

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised 
as an expense in the financial period/year in which the associated services 
are rendered by employees of the Company. 

 
b) Defined contribution plans 

 
The Company makes statutory contributions to approved provident funds 
and the contributions made are charged to profit or loss in the period to 
which they relate. When the contributions have been paid, the Company 
has no further payment obligations. 

 
3.10 Provisions 

 
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, 
as a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of economic 
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation 
can be estimated reliably. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an 
outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the 
provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest 
expenses. 
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

 
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the 
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
the asset or liability affected in the future. 

 
4.1  Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies 

 
There were no significant judgements made by management in the process of 
applying the accounting policies of the Company which may have significant effect 
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

 
4.2  Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year are discussed below. 

 
a) Determining the Value-in-Use 

 
In determining the value-in-use of a stand-alone asset or a cash-generating unit, 
management uses reasonable and supportable inputs about sales, costs of sales and 
other expenses based upon past experiences, current events and reasonably possible 
future developments. Cash flows are projected based on those inputs and discounted 
at an appropriate discount rate(s). The actual outcome or event may not coincide with 
the inputs or assumptions and the discount rate applied in the measurement, and this 
may have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position and results. 

b) Loss Allowances of Financial Assets 
 

The Company recognises impairment losses for loans and receivables using the 
incurred loss model. Individually significant loans and receivables are tested for 
impairment separately by estimating the cash flows expected to be recoverable. All 
other loans and receivables are categorised into credit risk classes and tested for 
impairment collectively, using the Company’s past experiences of loss statistics, 
ageing of past due amounts and current economic trends. The actual eventual losses 
may be different from the allowances made and these may affect the Company’s 
financial position and results. 
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c) Measurement of a Provision 

 
The Company uses a “best estimate” as the basis for measuring a provision. 
Management evaluates the estimates based on the Company’s historical experiences 
and other inputs or assumptions, current developments and future events that are 
reasonably possible under the particular circumstances. In the case when a provision 
relates to large population of customers (such as warranty provision), a probability- 
weighted estimate of the outflows required to settle the obligation is used. In the case 
of a single estimate (such as a provision for environmental restoration costs), a 
referenced contractor’s price or market price is used as the best estimate. If an 
obligation is to be settled over time, the expected outflows are discounted at a rate that 
takes into account the time value of money and the risk that the actual outcome might 
differ from the estimates made. The actual outcome may differ from the estimate 
made and this may have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position and 
results. 

 
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 
 Balance at   Balance at 

1.1.2024 
RM 

Additions 
RM 

Disposals 
RM 

31.12.2024 
RM 

Cost 
Computer 

 
14,518 

 
- 

 
- 

 
14,518 

Equipment 24,380 - - 24,380 
 38,898 - - 38,898 

 

Balance at 
1.1.2024 

Additions 
for the year Disposals 

Balance at 
31.12.2024 

RM RM RM RM 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss 
Computer 13,496 1,017 - 14,513 
Equipment 14,628 2,438 - 17,066 

 28,124 3,455 - 31,579 
 

2024 2023 
 RM RM 
Net carrying amount   
Computer 5 1,022 
Equipment 7,314 9,752 

 7,319 10,774  
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6. CONTRIBUTED SHARE CAPITAL  

 2024  2023 
 RM  RM 

Issued and fully paid:    

At beginning and end of year 
100,000 ordinary shares with no par value 

 
 100,000  

  
 100,000  

 
7. OTHER PAYABES AND ACCRUALS 

   

 2024  2023 
 RM  RM 

Amounts owing to related party 247,231 
 

253,811 
Third parties 21,642  27,145 
Accruals 62,477  64,558 

  331,350    345,514  

The amounts owing to related party represent advances and payment on behalf which 
are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and are to be settled in 
cash. 

 
8. OTHER EXPENSES 

 
2024 2023 
RM RM 

 
Depreciation of property, plant equipment  3,455   4,638  

 3,455   4,638  
 
 
 

9. TAX EXPENSE  
  2024 2023 
  RM RM 

 Current income tax expense 
Total tax expense for the year 

 -  
 -  

 -  
 -  
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9. TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 

 
The significant differences between the tax expense and accounting profit/(loss) 
multiplied by the statutory tax rate are due to the tax effects arising from the 
following items: 

 
 2024 

RM 
2023 
RM 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 271,401 (9,973) 
 
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 17% (2023:15%) 

 
46,155 

 
(1,496) 

Tax effects of : 
- reduced tax rate of 15% 

 
(3,000) 

 
- 

- expenses disallowed for tax purpose 798 1,496 
- utilisation of unrecognised deferred tax assets (43,953) - 
Effective tax expense 

 

 -  
 

 -  

As at financial year end, the Company has 

 

unabsorbed  capital 

 

allowance  of 
approximately RM Nil (2023: RM28,530) and unutilised tax losses of approximately 
RM330,743 (2023: RM586,260) which, subject to the agreement with the tax 
authority, are available to set off against future taxable profits. 

 
 

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise: 
 

 2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

Cash and bank balances  143,663   4,121  
Cash and cash equivalents  143,663   4,121  
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11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 

 
As at financial year end, the Company has deferred tax assets arising from the 
following, which is not recognised in financial statements until such time the directors 
are satisfied that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future against which 
the deferred tax assets can be utilised. 

 
 2024 

RM 
 2023 

RM 

Taxable temporary difference (4,881)  (4,876) 
Unabsorbed capital allowance -  28,525 
Unutilised tax losses  330,743    586,259  

 325,862  609,908 

Deferred tax assets not recognised at 17%    

(2023: 15%)  55,397    91,486  
 

The availability of the unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowance for off- 
setting against future taxable profits are subject to no substantial changes in the 
shareholdings of the Company under Section 44(5A) of the Income Tax Act 1967. 

 
 

12. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements of the company were authorised for issue by the Board of 
Directors on the same date as the date of Directors’ Report is being approved. 
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 2024 

RM 
 2023 

RM 
 

REVENUE 305,010 
  

- 

LESS : COST OF SALES 
    

Courier and postage 37   - 
Exam assesment facility 8,400   - 
Examiner fee and expenses 8,220    
Marker fee 2,796   - 
Printing and stationery 111   - 
Travelling expenses 55   - 

 19,619   -  

GROSS PROFIT 285,391 - 
 

 
LESS : OPERATING EXPENSES 
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

 
(10,535) 

 
(5,335) 

OTHER EXPENSES  (3,455)  (4,638) 

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION  271,401   (9,973) 
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SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES    

Management and admin    
Auditors' remuneration 2,000  1,000 
Bank charges 98  16 
IT web maintenance 485  - 
Postage and courier 120  120 
Printing and stationery 200  520 
Secretarial and filing fee 5,930  2,660 
Service tax 172  129 
Tax fee 1,400  700 
Travelling expenses 130  190 

 10,535  5,335 
 

OTHER EXPENSES 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,455 4,638 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024. 

 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The Company is principally engaged in the business of conducting public and in-house 
seminars, forums and related training programmes. 

The Company was dormant during the financial year. 

 
RESULTS 

RM 
 

Profit after tax for the year 271,401 
 
 

DIVIDENDS 

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous 
financial year. The directors do not recommend any dividend payment for the current 
financial year. 

 
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS 

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year. 

 
SHARE OPTIONS 

No options have been granted by the Company to any parties during the financial year to take 
up unissued shares of the Company. 

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of any option to 
take up unissued shares of the Company. As at the end of the financial year, there were no 
unissued shares of the Company under options. 

 
SHARES AND DEBENTURES 

The Company did not issue any new shares or debentures during the financial year. 
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DIRECTORS 

The directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this 
report are: 

 
MOHAMED ACKIEL MOHAMED Resigned on 26.09.2024 
CHEW KHOON HEE  Resigned on 26.09.2024 
WONG WING KIONG Appointed on 26.09.2024 
ONG HOCK GUAN Appointed on 26.09.2024 
TAY CHIA CHAY Appointed on 26.09.2024 

 
 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 
 

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at 
the end of the financial year in the ordinary shares of the Company during the financial year 
were as follows: 

 
Number of ordinary shares 

 As at 
1.1.2024 

 
Bought 

 
Sold 

As at 
31.12.2024 

CHEW KHOON HEE - - - - 
MOHAMED ACKIEL MOHAMED - - - - 
WONG WING KIONG - - - - 
ONG HOCK GUAN - - - - 
TAY CHIA CHAY - - - - 

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS 
    

Since the end of the previous financial year, no directors has received or become entitled to 
receive any benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation 
with any director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in 
which the director has a substantial financial interest except for the related party transactions 
as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. 

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company 
is a party, with the objects of enabling directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means 
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. 
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 

 
(a) Before the financial statements of the Company were prepared, the directors took 

reasonable steps: 

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of 
bad debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts and have satisfied 
themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate 
allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and 

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised at their 
book values in the ordinary course of business have been written down to their 
estimated realisable value. 

(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which 
would render: 

(i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for 
doubtful debts inadequate to any substantial extent in the financial statements 
of the Company; or 

(ii) the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the 
Company misleading. 

(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have 
arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or 
liabilities of the Company misleading or inappropriate. 

(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not 
otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Company which 
would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading. 

(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist: 

(i) any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or 

(ii) any contingent liability of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year. 

(f) In the opinion of the directors: 

(i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial 
year which will or may substantially affect the ability of the Company to meet 
its obligations as and when they fall due; and 

(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the 
interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which 
is likely to affect substantially the results of operations of the Company for the 
financial year in which this report is made. 
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS 

None of directors or past directors of the Company have received any remunerations from the 
Company during the financial year. 

 
INDEMNIFYING DIRECTORS, OFFICERS OR AUDITORS 

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the 
financial year, for any person who is or has been the director, officer or auditor of the 
Company. 

 
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS 

Total amount paid to or receivable by the auditors as remuneration for their statutory audit 
services as auditors for the financial year is RM2,000. 
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AUDITORS 

The auditors, K.L. NG & CO., have expressed their willingness to be re-appointed. 

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
ONG HOCK GUAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TAY CHIA CHAY 

 
Date : 
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS 
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016 

 
We, ONG HOCK GUAN and TAY CHIA CHAY, being two of the directors of IMM 
RESOURCES SDN. BHD., do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the 
accompanying financial statements comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are drawn up in accordance with 
the Malaysian Private Entities Reporting Standard issued by the Malaysian Accounting 
Standards Board and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

 
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 

 
 
 
 

ONG HOCK GUAN TAY CHIA CHAY 
 

Date : 
 

STATUTORY DECLARATION 
Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016 

 
I, ONG HOCK GUAN (I.C No. : 600228-13-5577), being the director primarily responsible 
for the financial management of IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD., do solemnly and sincerely 
declare that the accompanying financial statements comprising the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are in my 
opinion correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be 
true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960. 

 

Subscribed and solemnly declared by 
the abovenamed ONG HOCK GUAN 
at Petaling Jaya in Selangor 
on 

 
Before me, 

 
 
 

 
TAY CHIA CHAY 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS 



K.L. NG & CO. (AF 1478) 
Chartered Accountants 
921, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor 
Darul Ehsan. 
Tel : 03-7887 8895 / 7787 9527, Email: nklgroup@live.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited financial statements of IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Private Entities Reporting 
Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, 
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and 
IESBA Code. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 3.1 to the financial statements which state that the accompanying 
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the 
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business, despite the 
Company has net current liabilities of RM66,537 and a capital deficiency of RM59,218 as at 31 
December 2024. Continuance of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the 
continued financial support from its shareholders. 

 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements of the Company 
and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the Directors’ Report 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to 
read the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Directors’ Report is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
the Directors’ Report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the 
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Malaysian Private Entities 
Reporting Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors 
are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements of the Company that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the 
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards 
on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the 
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the 
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
 

Other Matters 
 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

K.L. NG & CO. NG KUAN LOONG 
AF 1478 02195/01/2027 J 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant 

 
Petaling Jaya 
Date: 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

 Note 2024  2023 
ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, plant and equipment 

 

 
5 

RM 
 

7,319 

 RM 
 

10,774 
  7,319  10,774 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Trade receivables 

  
 

121,150 

  
 

- 
Cash and bank balances  143,663  4,121 

  264,813  4,121 

TOTAL ASSETS  272,132  14,895 
 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

    

EQUITY 
Contributed share capital 

 
6 

 
100,000 

  
100,000 

Accumulated losses  (159,218)  (430,619) 
TOTAL EQUITY  (59,218)  (330,619) 

 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Other payables and accruals 

 

 
7 

 

 
331,350 

  

 
345,514 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  331,350  345,514 
 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

  
272,132 

  
14,895 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 

Note 
2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

 
Revenue 

  
305,010 

  
- 

Cost of sales   (19,619)   -  
Gross profit/(loss)  285,391  - 
Selling and administrative expenses  (10,535)  (5,335) 
Other expenses 8  (3,455)   (4,638) 
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 
Tax expense 

 
9 

271,401 
- 

 (9,973) 
- 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  271,401  (9,973) 
Other comprehensive income   -    -  
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year   271,401    (9,973) 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

Contributed 
share capital 

Accumulated 
losses Total 

2023 RM RM RM 

 
Balance at 1 January 2023 100,000 (420,646) (320,646) 
Loss for the year - (9,973) (9,973) 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 
Balance at 31 December 2023 100,000 (430,619) (330,619) 

 
 

 
Contributed 

share capital 

Retained 
profits/ 

(Accumulated 
losses) Total 

2024 RM RM RM 
 

Balance at 1 January 2024 100,000 (430,619) (330,619) 
Profit for the year - 271,401 271,401 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 
Balance at 31 December 2024 100,000 (159,218) (59,218) 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

2024 2023 
Note RM RM 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from customers 183,860 

 
- 

Cash payments to employees and for expenses  (44,318)  (16) 
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities  139,542   (16) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 139,542 (16) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  4,121   4,137  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 143,663 4,121 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Company is a private company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The 
principal activity of the Company is conducting public and in-house seminars, forums 
and related training programmes. There has been no significant change in the nature 
of the principal activity of the Company during the financial year. 

The registered office of the Company is located at 919, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, 
No. 3, Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor. 

The principal place of business is located at Suite 1006, Level 10, Block A, Kelana 
Centre Point, No. 3 Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor. 

 
2. COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND THE 

COMPANIES ACT 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Malaysian 
Private Entities Reporting Standard issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
Board and the provisions of the Malaysian Companies Act 2016. 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1 Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared: 
 

(a) using cost and fair value bases; and 
 

(b) by applying the going concern assumption as it is the intention of the 
Company to carry on with the existing business activity, notwithstanding 
that the Company incurred accumulated losses of RM159,218 as 31 
December 2024, and as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities 
exceeded its current assets by RM66,567 thereby indicating the existence 
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the 
Company’s ability to continue as going concern. 

 
3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Operating tangible assets that are used for more than one accounting period in 
the production and supply of goods and services, for administrative purposes 
or for rental to others are recognised as property, plant and equipment when 
the Company obtains control of the assets. The assets, including major spares, 
servicing equipment and stand-by equipment, are classified into appropriate 
classes based on their nature. Any subsequent replacement of a significant 
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component in an existing asset is capitalised as a new component in the asset 
and the old component is derecognised. 

All property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. For a 
purchased asset, cost comprises purchase price plus all directly attributable 
costs incurred in bringing the asset to its present location and condition for 
management’s intended use. For a self-constructed asset, cost comprises all 
direct and indirect costs of construction (including provision for restoration 
and cost of major inspection) but excludes internal profits. 

All property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Freehold land and capital work-in-progress are not depreciated but are subject 
to impairment test if there is any indication of impairment. 

 
All other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is 
calculated on the straight line basis to write off the cost of the assets over their 
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:- 

Computer 20% 
Equipment 10% 

At the end of each reporting period, the residual values, useful lives and 
depreciation methods for the property, plant and equipment are reviewed for 
reasonableness. Any change in estimate of an item is adjusted prospectively 
over its remaining useful life. 

3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
include cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in fair value, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts and pledged deposits. 

3.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

An impairment loss arises when the carrying amount of a Company’s asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 

 
At the end of each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any 
indication that a stand-alone asset or a cash-generating unit may be impaired 
by using external and internal sources of information. If any such indication 
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or cash- 
generating unit. 
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If an individual asset generates independent cash inflows, it is tested for 
impairment as a stand-alone asset. If an asset does not generate independent 
cash inflows, it is tested for impairment together with other assets in a cash- 
generating unit, at the lowest level in which independent cash inflows are 
generated and monitored for internal management purposes. 

 
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of 
its fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. The Company determines 
the fair value less costs to sell of an asset or a cash-generating unit in a 
hierarchy based on: (i) price in a binding sale agreement; (ii) market price 
traded in an active market; and (iii) estimate of market price using the best 
available information. The value in use is estimated by discounting the net 
cash inflows (by an appropriate discount rate) of the asset or unit, using 
reasonable and supportable management’s budgets and forecasts of five years 
and extrapolation of cash inflows for periods beyond the five-year forecast or 
budget. 

For an asset measured on a cost-based model, any impairment loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

 
For a cash-generating unit, any impairment loss is allocated to the assets of the 
unit pro rata based on the relative carrying amounts of the assets. 

 
The Company reassesses the recoverable amount of an impaired asset or a 
cash-generating unit if there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised previously may have reversed. Any reversal of impairment loss for 
an asset carried at a cost-based model is recognised in profit or loss, subject to 
the limit that the revised carrying amount does not exceed the amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised 
previously. 

 
3.5 Contributed Share Capital and Distributions 

(a) Contributed Share Capital 
 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments. 
 

When ordinary shares are issued to existing shareholders, they are recorded at 
the issue price. For ordinary shares issued in exchange for non-monetary 
assets, they are measured by reference to the fair values of the assets received. 

 
When ordinary shares are issued as consideration transferred in a business 
combination or as settlement of an existing financial liability, they are 
measured at their fair value at the date of the exchange transaction. 

 
Transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction 
from equity, net of any related income tax effect. 
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(b) Distributions 

 
Distributions to holders of an equity instrument are recognised as equity 
transactions and are debited directly in equity, net of any related income tax 
effect. 

 
A dividend declared is recognised as a liability only after it has been 
appropriately authorised, which is the date when the Board of Directors 
declares an interim dividend, or in the case of a proposed final dividend, the 
date the shareholders of the Company approve the proposed final dividend. 
For a distribution of non-cash assets to owners, the Company measures the 
dividend payable at the fair value of the assets to be distributed. 

3.6 Financial Instruments 

(a) Initial Recognition and Measurement 
 

The Company recognises a financial asset or a financial liability (including 
derivative instruments) in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 
On initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities are measured 
at fair value, which is generally the transaction price, plus transaction costs if 
the financial asset or financial liability is not measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. For instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss when incurred. 

 
(b) Derecognition of Financial Instruments 

 
A financial asset is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights 
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the Company 
transfers the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, 
including circumstances when the Company acts only as a collecting agent of 
the transferee, and retains no significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset or no continuing involvement in the control of the financial 
asset transferred. 

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, it is legally 
extinguished, which is either when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. A substantial modification of the terms of 
an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the 
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. 

 
(c) Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets 

 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies financial 
assets into two categories, namely: (i) financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss, and (ii) financial assets at amortised cost. 
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After initial recognition, investments in preference shares and ordinary shares 
are measured at their fair values by reference to the active market price, if 
observable, or otherwise by a valuation technique, without any deduction for 
transaction costs it may incur on sale or other disposal. 

 
Investments in debt instruments, whether quoted or unquoted, are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Investments in unquoted equity instruments and whose fair value cannot be 
reliably measured are measured at cost. 
Other than financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, all 
other financial assets are subject to review for impairment in accordance with 
Note 3.6(g). 

 
(d) Subsequent Measurement 

 
After initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. 

 
(e) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments 

 
The fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability is determined by 
reference to the quoted market price in an active market, and in the absence of 
an observable market price, by a valuation technique using reasonable and 
supportable assumptions. 

 
(f) Recognition of Gains and Losses 

 
Fair value changes of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as at 
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss when they 
arise. 

 
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost, a gain or 
loss is recognised in profit or loss only when the financial asset or financial 
liability is derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process of 
the instrument. 

 
(g) Impairment and Uncollectibility of Financial Assets 

 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company examines whether there is 
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
impaired. Evidences of trigger loss events include: (i) significant difficulty of 
the issuer or obligor; (ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency 
in interest or principal payments; (iii) granting exceptional concession to a 
customer; (iv) it is probable that a customer will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganisation; (v) the disappearance of an active market for that 
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or (vi) any observable market 
data indicating that there may be a measurable decrease in the estimated future 
cash flows from a group of financial assets. 
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For a non-current loan and receivable carried at amortised cost, the revised 
estimated cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate. Any 
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and a corresponding amount is 
recorded in a loss allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of impairment 
loss of the financial asset is reversed in profit or loss with a corresponding 
adjustment to the loss allowance account, subject to the limit that the reversal 
should not result in the revised carrying amount of the financial asset 
exceeding the amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised previously. 

For short-term trade and other receivables, where the effect of discounting is 
immaterial, impairment loss is tested for each individually significant 
receivable wherever there is any indication of impairment. Individually 
significant receivables for which no impairment loss is recognised are grouped 
together with all other receivables by classes based on credit risk 
characteristics and aged according to their past due periods. A collective 
allowance is estimated for a class group based on the Company’s experience 
of loss ratio in each class, taking into consideration current market conditions. 

For an unquoted equity investment measured at cost less impairment, the 
impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the best 
estimate (which will necessarily be an approximation) of the amount (which 
might be zero) that the Company expects to receive for the asset if it were sold 

 
at the reporting date. The Company may estimate the recoverable amount 
using an adjusted net asset value approach. 

 
3.7 Revenue Recognition and Measurement 

The Company measures revenue from a sale of goods or a service transaction at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is usually the 
invoice price, net of any trade discounts and volume rebates given to a customer 
in a sale or service transaction. 

Revenue from a sale of goods and services rendered are recognised when: 

(i) the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of the goods and upon the completion of services rendered; 

(ii) the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the 
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the 
goods sold; 

(iii) the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; 

(iv) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction 
will flow to the Company; and 

(v) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be 
measured reliably. 
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3.8 Income Tax 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the financial period comprises current and 
deferred tax. Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in 
respect of the taxable profit for the year and is measured using the tax rates that 
have been enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences 
at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. In principle, deferred tax 
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits can be utilised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred 
tax is recognised in the income statement, except when it arises from a transaction 
which is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also 
recognised directly in equity. 

3.9 Employees Benefits 

a) Short term benefits 
 

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised 
as an expense in the financial period/year in which the associated services 
are rendered by employees of the Company. 

 
b) Defined contribution plans 

 
The Company makes statutory contributions to approved provident funds 
and the contributions made are charged to profit or loss in the period to 
which they relate. When the contributions have been paid, the Company 
has no further payment obligations. 

 
3.10 Provisions 

 
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, 
as a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of economic 
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation 
can be estimated reliably. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an 
outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the 
provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest 
expenses. 
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

 
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the 
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
the asset or liability affected in the future. 

 
4.1  Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies 

 
There were no significant judgements made by management in the process of 
applying the accounting policies of the Company which may have significant effect 
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

 
4.2  Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year are discussed below. 

 
a) Determining the Value-in-Use 

 
In determining the value-in-use of a stand-alone asset or a cash-generating unit, 
management uses reasonable and supportable inputs about sales, costs of sales and 
other expenses based upon past experiences, current events and reasonably possible 
future developments. Cash flows are projected based on those inputs and discounted 
at an appropriate discount rate(s). The actual outcome or event may not coincide with 
the inputs or assumptions and the discount rate applied in the measurement, and this 
may have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position and results. 

b) Loss Allowances of Financial Assets 
 

The Company recognises impairment losses for loans and receivables using the 
incurred loss model. Individually significant loans and receivables are tested for 
impairment separately by estimating the cash flows expected to be recoverable. All 
other loans and receivables are categorised into credit risk classes and tested for 
impairment collectively, using the Company’s past experiences of loss statistics, 
ageing of past due amounts and current economic trends. The actual eventual losses 
may be different from the allowances made and these may affect the Company’s 
financial position and results. 
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c) Measurement of a Provision 

 
The Company uses a “best estimate” as the basis for measuring a provision. 
Management evaluates the estimates based on the Company’s historical experiences 
and other inputs or assumptions, current developments and future events that are 
reasonably possible under the particular circumstances. In the case when a provision 
relates to large population of customers (such as warranty provision), a probability- 
weighted estimate of the outflows required to settle the obligation is used. In the case 
of a single estimate (such as a provision for environmental restoration costs), a 
referenced contractor’s price or market price is used as the best estimate. If an 
obligation is to be settled over time, the expected outflows are discounted at a rate that 
takes into account the time value of money and the risk that the actual outcome might 
differ from the estimates made. The actual outcome may differ from the estimate 
made and this may have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position and 
results. 

 
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 
 Balance at   Balance at 

1.1.2024 
RM 

Additions 
RM 

Disposals 
RM 

31.12.2024 
RM 

Cost 
Computer 

 
14,518 

 
- 

 
- 

 
14,518 

Equipment 24,380 - - 24,380 
 38,898 - - 38,898 

 

Balance at 
1.1.2024 

Additions 
for the year Disposals 

Balance at 
31.12.2024 

RM RM RM RM 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss 
Computer 13,496 1,017 - 14,513 
Equipment 14,628 2,438 - 17,066 

 28,124 3,455 - 31,579 
 

2024 2023 
 RM RM 
Net carrying amount   
Computer 5 1,022 
Equipment 7,314 9,752 

 7,319 10,774  
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6. CONTRIBUTED SHARE CAPITAL  

 2024  2023 
 RM  RM 

Issued and fully paid:    

At beginning and end of year 
100,000 ordinary shares with no par value 

 
 100,000  

  
 100,000  

 
7. OTHER PAYABES AND ACCRUALS 

   

 2024  2023 
 RM  RM 

Amounts owing to related party 247,231 
 

253,811 
Third parties 21,642  27,145 
Accruals 62,477  64,558 

  331,350    345,514  

The amounts owing to related party represent advances and payment on behalf which 
are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and are to be settled in 
cash. 

 
8. OTHER EXPENSES 

 
2024 2023 
RM RM 

 
Depreciation of property, plant equipment  3,455   4,638  

 3,455   4,638  
 
 
 

9. TAX EXPENSE  
  2024 2023 
  RM RM 

 Current income tax expense 
Total tax expense for the year 

 -  
 -  

 -  
 -  
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9. TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 

 
The significant differences between the tax expense and accounting profit/(loss) 
multiplied by the statutory tax rate are due to the tax effects arising from the 
following items: 

 
 2024 

RM 
2023 
RM 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 271,401 (9,973) 
 
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 17% (2023:15%) 

 
46,155 

 
(1,496) 

Tax effects of : 
- reduced tax rate of 15% 

 
(3,000) 

 
- 

- expenses disallowed for tax purpose 798 1,496 
- utilisation of unrecognised deferred tax assets (43,953) - 
Effective tax expense 

 

 -  
 

 -  

As at financial year end, the Company has 

 

unabsorbed  capital 

 

allowance  of 
approximately RM Nil (2023: RM28,530) and unutilised tax losses of approximately 
RM330,743 (2023: RM586,260) which, subject to the agreement with the tax 
authority, are available to set off against future taxable profits. 

 
 

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise: 
 

 2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

Cash and bank balances  143,663   4,121  
Cash and cash equivalents  143,663   4,121  
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11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 

 
As at financial year end, the Company has deferred tax assets arising from the 
following, which is not recognised in financial statements until such time the directors 
are satisfied that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future against which 
the deferred tax assets can be utilised. 

 
 2024 

RM 
 2023 

RM 

Taxable temporary difference (4,881)  (4,876) 
Unabsorbed capital allowance -  28,525 
Unutilised tax losses  330,743    586,259  

 325,862  609,908 

Deferred tax assets not recognised at 17%    

(2023: 15%)  55,397    91,486  
 

The availability of the unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowance for off- 
setting against future taxable profits are subject to no substantial changes in the 
shareholdings of the Company under Section 44(5A) of the Income Tax Act 1967. 

 
 

12. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements of the company were authorised for issue by the Board of 
Directors on the same date as the date of Directors’ Report is being approved. 
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 2024 

RM 
 2023 

RM 
 

REVENUE 305,010 
  

- 

LESS : COST OF SALES 
    

Courier and postage 37   - 
Exam assesment facility 8,400   - 
Examiner fee and expenses 8,220    
Marker fee 2,796   - 
Printing and stationery 111   - 
Travelling expenses 55   - 

 19,619   -  

GROSS PROFIT 285,391 - 
 

 
LESS : OPERATING EXPENSES 
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

 
(10,535) 

 
(5,335) 

OTHER EXPENSES  (3,455)  (4,638) 

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION  271,401   (9,973) 
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SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES    

Management and admin    
Auditors' remuneration 2,000  1,000 
Bank charges 98  16 
IT web maintenance 485  - 
Postage and courier 120  120 
Printing and stationery 200  520 
Secretarial and filing fee 5,930  2,660 
Service tax 172  129 
Tax fee 1,400  700 
Travelling expenses 130  190 

 10,535  5,335 
 

OTHER EXPENSES 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,455 4,638 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024. 

 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The Company is principally engaged in the business of conducting public and in-house 
seminars, forums and related training programmes. 

The Company was dormant during the financial year. 

 
RESULTS 

RM 
 

Profit after tax for the year 271,401 
 
 

DIVIDENDS 

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous 
financial year. The directors do not recommend any dividend payment for the current 
financial year. 

 
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS 

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year. 

 
SHARE OPTIONS 

No options have been granted by the Company to any parties during the financial year to take 
up unissued shares of the Company. 

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of any option to 
take up unissued shares of the Company. As at the end of the financial year, there were no 
unissued shares of the Company under options. 

 
SHARES AND DEBENTURES 

The Company did not issue any new shares or debentures during the financial year. 
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DIRECTORS 

The directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this 
report are: 

 
MOHAMED ACKIEL MOHAMED Resigned on 26.09.2024 
CHEW KHOON HEE  Resigned on 26.09.2024 
WONG WING KIONG Appointed on 26.09.2024 
ONG HOCK GUAN Appointed on 26.09.2024 
TAY CHIA CHAY Appointed on 26.09.2024 

 
 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 
 

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at 
the end of the financial year in the ordinary shares of the Company during the financial year 
were as follows: 

 
Number of ordinary shares 

 As at 
1.1.2024 

 
Bought 

 
Sold 

As at 
31.12.2024 

CHEW KHOON HEE - - - - 
MOHAMED ACKIEL MOHAMED - - - - 
WONG WING KIONG - - - - 
ONG HOCK GUAN - - - - 
TAY CHIA CHAY - - - - 

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS 
    

Since the end of the previous financial year, no directors has received or become entitled to 
receive any benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation 
with any director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in 
which the director has a substantial financial interest except for the related party transactions 
as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. 

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company 
is a party, with the objects of enabling directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means 
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. 
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 

 
(a) Before the financial statements of the Company were prepared, the directors took 

reasonable steps: 

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of 
bad debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts and have satisfied 
themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate 
allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and 

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised at their 
book values in the ordinary course of business have been written down to their 
estimated realisable value. 

(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which 
would render: 

(i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for 
doubtful debts inadequate to any substantial extent in the financial statements 
of the Company; or 

(ii) the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the 
Company misleading. 

(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have 
arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or 
liabilities of the Company misleading or inappropriate. 

(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not 
otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Company which 
would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading. 

(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist: 

(i) any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or 

(ii) any contingent liability of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year. 

(f) In the opinion of the directors: 

(i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial 
year which will or may substantially affect the ability of the Company to meet 
its obligations as and when they fall due; and 

(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the 
interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which 
is likely to affect substantially the results of operations of the Company for the 
financial year in which this report is made. 
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS 

None of directors or past directors of the Company have received any remunerations from the 
Company during the financial year. 

 
INDEMNIFYING DIRECTORS, OFFICERS OR AUDITORS 

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the 
financial year, for any person who is or has been the director, officer or auditor of the 
Company. 

 
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS 

Total amount paid to or receivable by the auditors as remuneration for their statutory audit 
services as auditors for the financial year is RM2,000. 



IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 
200001030502 (533109-M) 

5 

 

 

 
AUDITORS 

The auditors, K.L. NG & CO., have expressed their willingness to be re-appointed. 

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
ONG HOCK GUAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TAY CHIA CHAY 

 
Date : 
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS 
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016 

 
We, ONG HOCK GUAN and TAY CHIA CHAY, being two of the directors of IMM 
RESOURCES SDN. BHD., do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the 
accompanying financial statements comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are drawn up in accordance with 
the Malaysian Private Entities Reporting Standard issued by the Malaysian Accounting 
Standards Board and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

 
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 

 
 
 
 

ONG HOCK GUAN TAY CHIA CHAY 
 

Date : 
 

STATUTORY DECLARATION 
Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016 

 
I, ONG HOCK GUAN (I.C No. : 600228-13-5577), being the director primarily responsible 
for the financial management of IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD., do solemnly and sincerely 
declare that the accompanying financial statements comprising the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are in my 
opinion correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be 
true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960. 

 

Subscribed and solemnly declared by 
the abovenamed ONG HOCK GUAN 
at Petaling Jaya in Selangor 
on 

 
Before me, 

 
 
 

 
TAY CHIA CHAY 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS 



K.L. NG & CO. (AF 1478) 
Chartered Accountants 
921, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor 
Darul Ehsan. 
Tel : 03-7887 8895 / 7787 9527, Email: nklgroup@live.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited financial statements of IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Private Entities Reporting 
Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, 
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and 
IESBA Code. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 3.1 to the financial statements which state that the accompanying 
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the 
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business, despite the 
Company has net current liabilities of RM66,537 and a capital deficiency of RM59,218 as at 31 
December 2024. Continuance of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the 
continued financial support from its shareholders. 

 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements of the Company 
and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the Directors’ Report 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to 
read the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Directors’ Report is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
the Directors’ Report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the 
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Malaysian Private Entities 
Reporting Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors 
are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements of the Company that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the 
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards 
on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the 
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the 
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
 

Other Matters 
 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

K.L. NG & CO. NG KUAN LOONG 
AF 1478 02195/01/2027 J 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant 

 
Petaling Jaya 
Date: 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

 Note 2024  2023 
ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, plant and equipment 

 

 
5 

RM 
 

7,319 

 RM 
 

10,774 
  7,319  10,774 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Trade receivables 

  
 

121,150 

  
 

- 
Cash and bank balances  143,663  4,121 

  264,813  4,121 

TOTAL ASSETS  272,132  14,895 
 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

    

EQUITY 
Contributed share capital 

 
6 

 
100,000 

  
100,000 

Accumulated losses  (159,218)  (430,619) 
TOTAL EQUITY  (59,218)  (330,619) 

 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Other payables and accruals 

 

 
7 

 

 
331,350 

  

 
345,514 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  331,350  345,514 
 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

  
272,132 

  
14,895 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 

Note 
2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

 
Revenue 

  
305,010 

  
- 

Cost of sales   (19,619)   -  
Gross profit/(loss)  285,391  - 
Selling and administrative expenses  (10,535)  (5,335) 
Other expenses 8  (3,455)   (4,638) 
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 
Tax expense 

 
9 

271,401 
- 

 (9,973) 
- 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  271,401  (9,973) 
Other comprehensive income   -    -  
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year   271,401    (9,973) 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

Contributed 
share capital 

Accumulated 
losses Total 

2023 RM RM RM 

 
Balance at 1 January 2023 100,000 (420,646) (320,646) 
Loss for the year - (9,973) (9,973) 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 
Balance at 31 December 2023 100,000 (430,619) (330,619) 

 
 

 
Contributed 

share capital 

Retained 
profits/ 

(Accumulated 
losses) Total 

2024 RM RM RM 
 

Balance at 1 January 2024 100,000 (430,619) (330,619) 
Profit for the year - 271,401 271,401 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 
Balance at 31 December 2024 100,000 (159,218) (59,218) 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

2024 2023 
Note RM RM 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from customers 183,860 

 
- 

Cash payments to employees and for expenses  (44,318)  (16) 
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities  139,542   (16) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 139,542 (16) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  4,121   4,137  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 143,663 4,121 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Company is a private company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The 
principal activity of the Company is conducting public and in-house seminars, forums 
and related training programmes. There has been no significant change in the nature 
of the principal activity of the Company during the financial year. 

The registered office of the Company is located at 919, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, 
No. 3, Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor. 

The principal place of business is located at Suite 1006, Level 10, Block A, Kelana 
Centre Point, No. 3 Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor. 

 
2. COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND THE 

COMPANIES ACT 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Malaysian 
Private Entities Reporting Standard issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
Board and the provisions of the Malaysian Companies Act 2016. 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1 Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared: 
 

(a) using cost and fair value bases; and 
 

(b) by applying the going concern assumption as it is the intention of the 
Company to carry on with the existing business activity, notwithstanding 
that the Company incurred accumulated losses of RM159,218 as 31 
December 2024, and as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities 
exceeded its current assets by RM66,567 thereby indicating the existence 
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the 
Company’s ability to continue as going concern. 

 
3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Operating tangible assets that are used for more than one accounting period in 
the production and supply of goods and services, for administrative purposes 
or for rental to others are recognised as property, plant and equipment when 
the Company obtains control of the assets. The assets, including major spares, 
servicing equipment and stand-by equipment, are classified into appropriate 
classes based on their nature. Any subsequent replacement of a significant 
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component in an existing asset is capitalised as a new component in the asset 
and the old component is derecognised. 

All property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. For a 
purchased asset, cost comprises purchase price plus all directly attributable 
costs incurred in bringing the asset to its present location and condition for 
management’s intended use. For a self-constructed asset, cost comprises all 
direct and indirect costs of construction (including provision for restoration 
and cost of major inspection) but excludes internal profits. 

All property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Freehold land and capital work-in-progress are not depreciated but are subject 
to impairment test if there is any indication of impairment. 

 
All other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is 
calculated on the straight line basis to write off the cost of the assets over their 
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:- 

Computer 20% 
Equipment 10% 

At the end of each reporting period, the residual values, useful lives and 
depreciation methods for the property, plant and equipment are reviewed for 
reasonableness. Any change in estimate of an item is adjusted prospectively 
over its remaining useful life. 

3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
include cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in fair value, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts and pledged deposits. 

3.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

An impairment loss arises when the carrying amount of a Company’s asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 

 
At the end of each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any 
indication that a stand-alone asset or a cash-generating unit may be impaired 
by using external and internal sources of information. If any such indication 
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or cash- 
generating unit. 
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If an individual asset generates independent cash inflows, it is tested for 
impairment as a stand-alone asset. If an asset does not generate independent 
cash inflows, it is tested for impairment together with other assets in a cash- 
generating unit, at the lowest level in which independent cash inflows are 
generated and monitored for internal management purposes. 

 
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of 
its fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. The Company determines 
the fair value less costs to sell of an asset or a cash-generating unit in a 
hierarchy based on: (i) price in a binding sale agreement; (ii) market price 
traded in an active market; and (iii) estimate of market price using the best 
available information. The value in use is estimated by discounting the net 
cash inflows (by an appropriate discount rate) of the asset or unit, using 
reasonable and supportable management’s budgets and forecasts of five years 
and extrapolation of cash inflows for periods beyond the five-year forecast or 
budget. 

For an asset measured on a cost-based model, any impairment loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

 
For a cash-generating unit, any impairment loss is allocated to the assets of the 
unit pro rata based on the relative carrying amounts of the assets. 

 
The Company reassesses the recoverable amount of an impaired asset or a 
cash-generating unit if there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised previously may have reversed. Any reversal of impairment loss for 
an asset carried at a cost-based model is recognised in profit or loss, subject to 
the limit that the revised carrying amount does not exceed the amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised 
previously. 

 
3.5 Contributed Share Capital and Distributions 

(a) Contributed Share Capital 
 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments. 
 

When ordinary shares are issued to existing shareholders, they are recorded at 
the issue price. For ordinary shares issued in exchange for non-monetary 
assets, they are measured by reference to the fair values of the assets received. 

 
When ordinary shares are issued as consideration transferred in a business 
combination or as settlement of an existing financial liability, they are 
measured at their fair value at the date of the exchange transaction. 

 
Transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction 
from equity, net of any related income tax effect. 
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(b) Distributions 

 
Distributions to holders of an equity instrument are recognised as equity 
transactions and are debited directly in equity, net of any related income tax 
effect. 

 
A dividend declared is recognised as a liability only after it has been 
appropriately authorised, which is the date when the Board of Directors 
declares an interim dividend, or in the case of a proposed final dividend, the 
date the shareholders of the Company approve the proposed final dividend. 
For a distribution of non-cash assets to owners, the Company measures the 
dividend payable at the fair value of the assets to be distributed. 

3.6 Financial Instruments 

(a) Initial Recognition and Measurement 
 

The Company recognises a financial asset or a financial liability (including 
derivative instruments) in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 
On initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities are measured 
at fair value, which is generally the transaction price, plus transaction costs if 
the financial asset or financial liability is not measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. For instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss when incurred. 

 
(b) Derecognition of Financial Instruments 

 
A financial asset is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights 
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the Company 
transfers the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, 
including circumstances when the Company acts only as a collecting agent of 
the transferee, and retains no significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset or no continuing involvement in the control of the financial 
asset transferred. 

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, it is legally 
extinguished, which is either when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. A substantial modification of the terms of 
an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the 
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. 

 
(c) Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets 

 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies financial 
assets into two categories, namely: (i) financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss, and (ii) financial assets at amortised cost. 
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After initial recognition, investments in preference shares and ordinary shares 
are measured at their fair values by reference to the active market price, if 
observable, or otherwise by a valuation technique, without any deduction for 
transaction costs it may incur on sale or other disposal. 

 
Investments in debt instruments, whether quoted or unquoted, are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Investments in unquoted equity instruments and whose fair value cannot be 
reliably measured are measured at cost. 
Other than financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, all 
other financial assets are subject to review for impairment in accordance with 
Note 3.6(g). 

 
(d) Subsequent Measurement 

 
After initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. 

 
(e) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments 

 
The fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability is determined by 
reference to the quoted market price in an active market, and in the absence of 
an observable market price, by a valuation technique using reasonable and 
supportable assumptions. 

 
(f) Recognition of Gains and Losses 

 
Fair value changes of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as at 
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss when they 
arise. 

 
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost, a gain or 
loss is recognised in profit or loss only when the financial asset or financial 
liability is derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process of 
the instrument. 

 
(g) Impairment and Uncollectibility of Financial Assets 

 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company examines whether there is 
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
impaired. Evidences of trigger loss events include: (i) significant difficulty of 
the issuer or obligor; (ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency 
in interest or principal payments; (iii) granting exceptional concession to a 
customer; (iv) it is probable that a customer will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganisation; (v) the disappearance of an active market for that 
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or (vi) any observable market 
data indicating that there may be a measurable decrease in the estimated future 
cash flows from a group of financial assets. 
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For a non-current loan and receivable carried at amortised cost, the revised 
estimated cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate. Any 
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and a corresponding amount is 
recorded in a loss allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of impairment 
loss of the financial asset is reversed in profit or loss with a corresponding 
adjustment to the loss allowance account, subject to the limit that the reversal 
should not result in the revised carrying amount of the financial asset 
exceeding the amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised previously. 

For short-term trade and other receivables, where the effect of discounting is 
immaterial, impairment loss is tested for each individually significant 
receivable wherever there is any indication of impairment. Individually 
significant receivables for which no impairment loss is recognised are grouped 
together with all other receivables by classes based on credit risk 
characteristics and aged according to their past due periods. A collective 
allowance is estimated for a class group based on the Company’s experience 
of loss ratio in each class, taking into consideration current market conditions. 

For an unquoted equity investment measured at cost less impairment, the 
impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the best 
estimate (which will necessarily be an approximation) of the amount (which 
might be zero) that the Company expects to receive for the asset if it were sold 

 
at the reporting date. The Company may estimate the recoverable amount 
using an adjusted net asset value approach. 

 
3.7 Revenue Recognition and Measurement 

The Company measures revenue from a sale of goods or a service transaction at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is usually the 
invoice price, net of any trade discounts and volume rebates given to a customer 
in a sale or service transaction. 

Revenue from a sale of goods and services rendered are recognised when: 

(i) the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of the goods and upon the completion of services rendered; 

(ii) the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the 
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the 
goods sold; 

(iii) the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; 

(iv) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction 
will flow to the Company; and 

(v) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be 
measured reliably. 
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3.8 Income Tax 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the financial period comprises current and 
deferred tax. Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in 
respect of the taxable profit for the year and is measured using the tax rates that 
have been enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences 
at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. In principle, deferred tax 
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits can be utilised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred 
tax is recognised in the income statement, except when it arises from a transaction 
which is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also 
recognised directly in equity. 

3.9 Employees Benefits 

a) Short term benefits 
 

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised 
as an expense in the financial period/year in which the associated services 
are rendered by employees of the Company. 

 
b) Defined contribution plans 

 
The Company makes statutory contributions to approved provident funds 
and the contributions made are charged to profit or loss in the period to 
which they relate. When the contributions have been paid, the Company 
has no further payment obligations. 

 
3.10 Provisions 

 
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, 
as a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of economic 
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation 
can be estimated reliably. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an 
outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the 
provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest 
expenses. 
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

 
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the 
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
the asset or liability affected in the future. 

 
4.1  Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies 

 
There were no significant judgements made by management in the process of 
applying the accounting policies of the Company which may have significant effect 
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

 
4.2  Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year are discussed below. 

 
a) Determining the Value-in-Use 

 
In determining the value-in-use of a stand-alone asset or a cash-generating unit, 
management uses reasonable and supportable inputs about sales, costs of sales and 
other expenses based upon past experiences, current events and reasonably possible 
future developments. Cash flows are projected based on those inputs and discounted 
at an appropriate discount rate(s). The actual outcome or event may not coincide with 
the inputs or assumptions and the discount rate applied in the measurement, and this 
may have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position and results. 

b) Loss Allowances of Financial Assets 
 

The Company recognises impairment losses for loans and receivables using the 
incurred loss model. Individually significant loans and receivables are tested for 
impairment separately by estimating the cash flows expected to be recoverable. All 
other loans and receivables are categorised into credit risk classes and tested for 
impairment collectively, using the Company’s past experiences of loss statistics, 
ageing of past due amounts and current economic trends. The actual eventual losses 
may be different from the allowances made and these may affect the Company’s 
financial position and results. 
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c) Measurement of a Provision 

 
The Company uses a “best estimate” as the basis for measuring a provision. 
Management evaluates the estimates based on the Company’s historical experiences 
and other inputs or assumptions, current developments and future events that are 
reasonably possible under the particular circumstances. In the case when a provision 
relates to large population of customers (such as warranty provision), a probability- 
weighted estimate of the outflows required to settle the obligation is used. In the case 
of a single estimate (such as a provision for environmental restoration costs), a 
referenced contractor’s price or market price is used as the best estimate. If an 
obligation is to be settled over time, the expected outflows are discounted at a rate that 
takes into account the time value of money and the risk that the actual outcome might 
differ from the estimates made. The actual outcome may differ from the estimate 
made and this may have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position and 
results. 

 
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 
 Balance at   Balance at 

1.1.2024 
RM 

Additions 
RM 

Disposals 
RM 

31.12.2024 
RM 

Cost 
Computer 

 
14,518 

 
- 

 
- 

 
14,518 

Equipment 24,380 - - 24,380 
 38,898 - - 38,898 

 

Balance at 
1.1.2024 

Additions 
for the year Disposals 

Balance at 
31.12.2024 

RM RM RM RM 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss 
Computer 13,496 1,017 - 14,513 
Equipment 14,628 2,438 - 17,066 

 28,124 3,455 - 31,579 
 

2024 2023 
 RM RM 
Net carrying amount   
Computer 5 1,022 
Equipment 7,314 9,752 

 7,319 10,774  
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6. CONTRIBUTED SHARE CAPITAL  

 2024  2023 
 RM  RM 

Issued and fully paid:    

At beginning and end of year 
100,000 ordinary shares with no par value 

 
 100,000  

  
 100,000  

 
7. OTHER PAYABES AND ACCRUALS 

   

 2024  2023 
 RM  RM 

Amounts owing to related party 247,231 
 

253,811 
Third parties 21,642  27,145 
Accruals 62,477  64,558 

  331,350    345,514  

The amounts owing to related party represent advances and payment on behalf which 
are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and are to be settled in 
cash. 

 
8. OTHER EXPENSES 

 
2024 2023 
RM RM 

 
Depreciation of property, plant equipment  3,455   4,638  

 3,455   4,638  
 
 
 

9. TAX EXPENSE  
  2024 2023 
  RM RM 

 Current income tax expense 
Total tax expense for the year 

 -  
 -  

 -  
 -  
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9. TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 

 
The significant differences between the tax expense and accounting profit/(loss) 
multiplied by the statutory tax rate are due to the tax effects arising from the 
following items: 

 
 2024 

RM 
2023 
RM 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 271,401 (9,973) 
 
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 17% (2023:15%) 

 
46,155 

 
(1,496) 

Tax effects of : 
- reduced tax rate of 15% 

 
(3,000) 

 
- 

- expenses disallowed for tax purpose 798 1,496 
- utilisation of unrecognised deferred tax assets (43,953) - 
Effective tax expense 

 

 -  
 

 -  

As at financial year end, the Company has 

 

unabsorbed  capital 

 

allowance  of 
approximately RM Nil (2023: RM28,530) and unutilised tax losses of approximately 
RM330,743 (2023: RM586,260) which, subject to the agreement with the tax 
authority, are available to set off against future taxable profits. 

 
 

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise: 
 

 2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

Cash and bank balances  143,663   4,121  
Cash and cash equivalents  143,663   4,121  
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11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 

 
As at financial year end, the Company has deferred tax assets arising from the 
following, which is not recognised in financial statements until such time the directors 
are satisfied that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future against which 
the deferred tax assets can be utilised. 

 
 2024 

RM 
 2023 

RM 

Taxable temporary difference (4,881)  (4,876) 
Unabsorbed capital allowance -  28,525 
Unutilised tax losses  330,743    586,259  

 325,862  609,908 

Deferred tax assets not recognised at 17%    

(2023: 15%)  55,397    91,486  
 

The availability of the unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowance for off- 
setting against future taxable profits are subject to no substantial changes in the 
shareholdings of the Company under Section 44(5A) of the Income Tax Act 1967. 

 
 

12. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements of the company were authorised for issue by the Board of 
Directors on the same date as the date of Directors’ Report is being approved. 



IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 
200001030502 (533109-M) 

( For management purposes only) 

 

 

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 2024 

RM 
 2023 

RM 
 

REVENUE 305,010 
  

- 

LESS : COST OF SALES 
    

Courier and postage 37   - 
Exam assesment facility 8,400   - 
Examiner fee and expenses 8,220    
Marker fee 2,796   - 
Printing and stationery 111   - 
Travelling expenses 55   - 

 19,619   -  

GROSS PROFIT 285,391 - 
 

 
LESS : OPERATING EXPENSES 
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

 
(10,535) 

 
(5,335) 

OTHER EXPENSES  (3,455)  (4,638) 

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION  271,401   (9,973) 
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SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES    

Management and admin    
Auditors' remuneration 2,000  1,000 
Bank charges 98  16 
IT web maintenance 485  - 
Postage and courier 120  120 
Printing and stationery 200  520 
Secretarial and filing fee 5,930  2,660 
Service tax 172  129 
Tax fee 1,400  700 
Travelling expenses 130  190 

 10,535  5,335 
 

OTHER EXPENSES 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,455 4,638 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024. 

 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The Company is principally engaged in the business of conducting public and in-house 
seminars, forums and related training programmes. 

The Company was dormant during the financial year. 

 
RESULTS 

RM 
 

Profit after tax for the year 271,401 
 
 

DIVIDENDS 

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous 
financial year. The directors do not recommend any dividend payment for the current 
financial year. 

 
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS 

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year. 

 
SHARE OPTIONS 

No options have been granted by the Company to any parties during the financial year to take 
up unissued shares of the Company. 

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of any option to 
take up unissued shares of the Company. As at the end of the financial year, there were no 
unissued shares of the Company under options. 

 
SHARES AND DEBENTURES 

The Company did not issue any new shares or debentures during the financial year. 
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DIRECTORS 

The directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this 
report are: 

 
MOHAMED ACKIEL MOHAMED Resigned on 26.09.2024 
CHEW KHOON HEE  Resigned on 26.09.2024 
WONG WING KIONG Appointed on 26.09.2024 
ONG HOCK GUAN Appointed on 26.09.2024 
TAY CHIA CHAY Appointed on 26.09.2024 

 
 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 
 

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at 
the end of the financial year in the ordinary shares of the Company during the financial year 
were as follows: 

 
Number of ordinary shares 

 As at 
1.1.2024 

 
Bought 

 
Sold 

As at 
31.12.2024 

CHEW KHOON HEE - - - - 
MOHAMED ACKIEL MOHAMED - - - - 
WONG WING KIONG - - - - 
ONG HOCK GUAN - - - - 
TAY CHIA CHAY - - - - 

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS 
    

Since the end of the previous financial year, no directors has received or become entitled to 
receive any benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation 
with any director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in 
which the director has a substantial financial interest except for the related party transactions 
as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. 

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company 
is a party, with the objects of enabling directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means 
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. 



IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 
200001030502 (533109-M) 

3 

 

 

 
OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 

 
(a) Before the financial statements of the Company were prepared, the directors took 

reasonable steps: 

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of 
bad debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts and have satisfied 
themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate 
allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and 

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised at their 
book values in the ordinary course of business have been written down to their 
estimated realisable value. 

(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which 
would render: 

(i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for 
doubtful debts inadequate to any substantial extent in the financial statements 
of the Company; or 

(ii) the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the 
Company misleading. 

(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have 
arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or 
liabilities of the Company misleading or inappropriate. 

(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not 
otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Company which 
would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading. 

(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist: 

(i) any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or 

(ii) any contingent liability of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year. 

(f) In the opinion of the directors: 

(i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial 
year which will or may substantially affect the ability of the Company to meet 
its obligations as and when they fall due; and 

(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the 
interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which 
is likely to affect substantially the results of operations of the Company for the 
financial year in which this report is made. 
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS 

None of directors or past directors of the Company have received any remunerations from the 
Company during the financial year. 

 
INDEMNIFYING DIRECTORS, OFFICERS OR AUDITORS 

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the 
financial year, for any person who is or has been the director, officer or auditor of the 
Company. 

 
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS 

Total amount paid to or receivable by the auditors as remuneration for their statutory audit 
services as auditors for the financial year is RM2,000. 
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AUDITORS 

The auditors, K.L. NG & CO., have expressed their willingness to be re-appointed. 

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
ONG HOCK GUAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TAY CHIA CHAY 

 
Date : 
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS 
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016 

 
We, ONG HOCK GUAN and TAY CHIA CHAY, being two of the directors of IMM 
RESOURCES SDN. BHD., do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the 
accompanying financial statements comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are drawn up in accordance with 
the Malaysian Private Entities Reporting Standard issued by the Malaysian Accounting 
Standards Board and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

 
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 

 
 
 
 

ONG HOCK GUAN TAY CHIA CHAY 
 

Date : 
 

STATUTORY DECLARATION 
Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016 

 
I, ONG HOCK GUAN (I.C No. : 600228-13-5577), being the director primarily responsible 
for the financial management of IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD., do solemnly and sincerely 
declare that the accompanying financial statements comprising the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are in my 
opinion correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be 
true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960. 

 

Subscribed and solemnly declared by 
the abovenamed ONG HOCK GUAN 
at Petaling Jaya in Selangor 
on 

 
Before me, 

 
 
 

 
TAY CHIA CHAY 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS 



K.L. NG & CO. (AF 1478) 
Chartered Accountants 
921, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor 
Darul Ehsan. 
Tel : 03-7887 8895 / 7787 9527, Email: nklgroup@live.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited financial statements of IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Private Entities Reporting 
Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, 
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and 
IESBA Code. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 3.1 to the financial statements which state that the accompanying 
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the 
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business, despite the 
Company has net current liabilities of RM66,537 and a capital deficiency of RM59,218 as at 31 
December 2024. Continuance of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the 
continued financial support from its shareholders. 

 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements of the Company 
and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the Directors’ Report 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to 
read the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Directors’ Report is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
the Directors’ Report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the 
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Malaysian Private Entities 
Reporting Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors 
are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements of the Company that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the 
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards 
on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the 
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the 
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
 

Other Matters 
 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

K.L. NG & CO. NG KUAN LOONG 
AF 1478 02195/01/2027 J 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant 

 
Petaling Jaya 
Date: 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

 Note 2024  2023 
ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, plant and equipment 

 

 
5 

RM 
 

7,319 

 RM 
 

10,774 
  7,319  10,774 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Trade receivables 

  
 

121,150 

  
 

- 
Cash and bank balances  143,663  4,121 

  264,813  4,121 

TOTAL ASSETS  272,132  14,895 
 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

    

EQUITY 
Contributed share capital 

 
6 

 
100,000 

  
100,000 

Accumulated losses  (159,218)  (430,619) 
TOTAL EQUITY  (59,218)  (330,619) 

 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Other payables and accruals 

 

 
7 

 

 
331,350 

  

 
345,514 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  331,350  345,514 
 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

  
272,132 

  
14,895 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 

Note 
2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

 
Revenue 

  
305,010 

  
- 

Cost of sales   (19,619)   -  
Gross profit/(loss)  285,391  - 
Selling and administrative expenses  (10,535)  (5,335) 
Other expenses 8  (3,455)   (4,638) 
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 
Tax expense 

 
9 

271,401 
- 

 (9,973) 
- 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  271,401  (9,973) 
Other comprehensive income   -    -  
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year   271,401    (9,973) 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

Contributed 
share capital 

Accumulated 
losses Total 

2023 RM RM RM 

 
Balance at 1 January 2023 100,000 (420,646) (320,646) 
Loss for the year - (9,973) (9,973) 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 
Balance at 31 December 2023 100,000 (430,619) (330,619) 

 
 

 
Contributed 

share capital 

Retained 
profits/ 

(Accumulated 
losses) Total 

2024 RM RM RM 
 

Balance at 1 January 2024 100,000 (430,619) (330,619) 
Profit for the year - 271,401 271,401 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 
Balance at 31 December 2024 100,000 (159,218) (59,218) 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

2024 2023 
Note RM RM 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from customers 183,860 

 
- 

Cash payments to employees and for expenses  (44,318)  (16) 
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities  139,542   (16) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 139,542 (16) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  4,121   4,137  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 143,663 4,121 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Company is a private company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The 
principal activity of the Company is conducting public and in-house seminars, forums 
and related training programmes. There has been no significant change in the nature 
of the principal activity of the Company during the financial year. 

The registered office of the Company is located at 919, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, 
No. 3, Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor. 

The principal place of business is located at Suite 1006, Level 10, Block A, Kelana 
Centre Point, No. 3 Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor. 

 
2. COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND THE 

COMPANIES ACT 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Malaysian 
Private Entities Reporting Standard issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
Board and the provisions of the Malaysian Companies Act 2016. 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1 Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared: 
 

(a) using cost and fair value bases; and 
 

(b) by applying the going concern assumption as it is the intention of the 
Company to carry on with the existing business activity, notwithstanding 
that the Company incurred accumulated losses of RM159,218 as 31 
December 2024, and as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities 
exceeded its current assets by RM66,567 thereby indicating the existence 
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the 
Company’s ability to continue as going concern. 

 
3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Operating tangible assets that are used for more than one accounting period in 
the production and supply of goods and services, for administrative purposes 
or for rental to others are recognised as property, plant and equipment when 
the Company obtains control of the assets. The assets, including major spares, 
servicing equipment and stand-by equipment, are classified into appropriate 
classes based on their nature. Any subsequent replacement of a significant 
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component in an existing asset is capitalised as a new component in the asset 
and the old component is derecognised. 

All property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. For a 
purchased asset, cost comprises purchase price plus all directly attributable 
costs incurred in bringing the asset to its present location and condition for 
management’s intended use. For a self-constructed asset, cost comprises all 
direct and indirect costs of construction (including provision for restoration 
and cost of major inspection) but excludes internal profits. 

All property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Freehold land and capital work-in-progress are not depreciated but are subject 
to impairment test if there is any indication of impairment. 

 
All other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is 
calculated on the straight line basis to write off the cost of the assets over their 
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:- 

Computer 20% 
Equipment 10% 

At the end of each reporting period, the residual values, useful lives and 
depreciation methods for the property, plant and equipment are reviewed for 
reasonableness. Any change in estimate of an item is adjusted prospectively 
over its remaining useful life. 

3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
include cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in fair value, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts and pledged deposits. 

3.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

An impairment loss arises when the carrying amount of a Company’s asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 

 
At the end of each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any 
indication that a stand-alone asset or a cash-generating unit may be impaired 
by using external and internal sources of information. If any such indication 
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or cash- 
generating unit. 
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If an individual asset generates independent cash inflows, it is tested for 
impairment as a stand-alone asset. If an asset does not generate independent 
cash inflows, it is tested for impairment together with other assets in a cash- 
generating unit, at the lowest level in which independent cash inflows are 
generated and monitored for internal management purposes. 

 
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of 
its fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. The Company determines 
the fair value less costs to sell of an asset or a cash-generating unit in a 
hierarchy based on: (i) price in a binding sale agreement; (ii) market price 
traded in an active market; and (iii) estimate of market price using the best 
available information. The value in use is estimated by discounting the net 
cash inflows (by an appropriate discount rate) of the asset or unit, using 
reasonable and supportable management’s budgets and forecasts of five years 
and extrapolation of cash inflows for periods beyond the five-year forecast or 
budget. 

For an asset measured on a cost-based model, any impairment loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

 
For a cash-generating unit, any impairment loss is allocated to the assets of the 
unit pro rata based on the relative carrying amounts of the assets. 

 
The Company reassesses the recoverable amount of an impaired asset or a 
cash-generating unit if there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised previously may have reversed. Any reversal of impairment loss for 
an asset carried at a cost-based model is recognised in profit or loss, subject to 
the limit that the revised carrying amount does not exceed the amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised 
previously. 

 
3.5 Contributed Share Capital and Distributions 

(a) Contributed Share Capital 
 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments. 
 

When ordinary shares are issued to existing shareholders, they are recorded at 
the issue price. For ordinary shares issued in exchange for non-monetary 
assets, they are measured by reference to the fair values of the assets received. 

 
When ordinary shares are issued as consideration transferred in a business 
combination or as settlement of an existing financial liability, they are 
measured at their fair value at the date of the exchange transaction. 

 
Transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction 
from equity, net of any related income tax effect. 
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(b) Distributions 

 
Distributions to holders of an equity instrument are recognised as equity 
transactions and are debited directly in equity, net of any related income tax 
effect. 

 
A dividend declared is recognised as a liability only after it has been 
appropriately authorised, which is the date when the Board of Directors 
declares an interim dividend, or in the case of a proposed final dividend, the 
date the shareholders of the Company approve the proposed final dividend. 
For a distribution of non-cash assets to owners, the Company measures the 
dividend payable at the fair value of the assets to be distributed. 

3.6 Financial Instruments 

(a) Initial Recognition and Measurement 
 

The Company recognises a financial asset or a financial liability (including 
derivative instruments) in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 
On initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities are measured 
at fair value, which is generally the transaction price, plus transaction costs if 
the financial asset or financial liability is not measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. For instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss when incurred. 

 
(b) Derecognition of Financial Instruments 

 
A financial asset is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights 
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the Company 
transfers the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, 
including circumstances when the Company acts only as a collecting agent of 
the transferee, and retains no significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset or no continuing involvement in the control of the financial 
asset transferred. 

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, it is legally 
extinguished, which is either when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. A substantial modification of the terms of 
an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the 
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. 

 
(c) Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets 

 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies financial 
assets into two categories, namely: (i) financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss, and (ii) financial assets at amortised cost. 



IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 
200001030502 (533109-M) 

20 

 

 

 
After initial recognition, investments in preference shares and ordinary shares 
are measured at their fair values by reference to the active market price, if 
observable, or otherwise by a valuation technique, without any deduction for 
transaction costs it may incur on sale or other disposal. 

 
Investments in debt instruments, whether quoted or unquoted, are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Investments in unquoted equity instruments and whose fair value cannot be 
reliably measured are measured at cost. 
Other than financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, all 
other financial assets are subject to review for impairment in accordance with 
Note 3.6(g). 

 
(d) Subsequent Measurement 

 
After initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. 

 
(e) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments 

 
The fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability is determined by 
reference to the quoted market price in an active market, and in the absence of 
an observable market price, by a valuation technique using reasonable and 
supportable assumptions. 

 
(f) Recognition of Gains and Losses 

 
Fair value changes of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as at 
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss when they 
arise. 

 
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost, a gain or 
loss is recognised in profit or loss only when the financial asset or financial 
liability is derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process of 
the instrument. 

 
(g) Impairment and Uncollectibility of Financial Assets 

 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company examines whether there is 
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
impaired. Evidences of trigger loss events include: (i) significant difficulty of 
the issuer or obligor; (ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency 
in interest or principal payments; (iii) granting exceptional concession to a 
customer; (iv) it is probable that a customer will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganisation; (v) the disappearance of an active market for that 
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or (vi) any observable market 
data indicating that there may be a measurable decrease in the estimated future 
cash flows from a group of financial assets. 
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For a non-current loan and receivable carried at amortised cost, the revised 
estimated cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate. Any 
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and a corresponding amount is 
recorded in a loss allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of impairment 
loss of the financial asset is reversed in profit or loss with a corresponding 
adjustment to the loss allowance account, subject to the limit that the reversal 
should not result in the revised carrying amount of the financial asset 
exceeding the amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised previously. 

For short-term trade and other receivables, where the effect of discounting is 
immaterial, impairment loss is tested for each individually significant 
receivable wherever there is any indication of impairment. Individually 
significant receivables for which no impairment loss is recognised are grouped 
together with all other receivables by classes based on credit risk 
characteristics and aged according to their past due periods. A collective 
allowance is estimated for a class group based on the Company’s experience 
of loss ratio in each class, taking into consideration current market conditions. 

For an unquoted equity investment measured at cost less impairment, the 
impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the best 
estimate (which will necessarily be an approximation) of the amount (which 
might be zero) that the Company expects to receive for the asset if it were sold 

 
at the reporting date. The Company may estimate the recoverable amount 
using an adjusted net asset value approach. 

 
3.7 Revenue Recognition and Measurement 

The Company measures revenue from a sale of goods or a service transaction at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is usually the 
invoice price, net of any trade discounts and volume rebates given to a customer 
in a sale or service transaction. 

Revenue from a sale of goods and services rendered are recognised when: 

(i) the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of the goods and upon the completion of services rendered; 

(ii) the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the 
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the 
goods sold; 

(iii) the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; 

(iv) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction 
will flow to the Company; and 

(v) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be 
measured reliably. 
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3.8 Income Tax 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the financial period comprises current and 
deferred tax. Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in 
respect of the taxable profit for the year and is measured using the tax rates that 
have been enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences 
at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. In principle, deferred tax 
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits can be utilised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred 
tax is recognised in the income statement, except when it arises from a transaction 
which is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also 
recognised directly in equity. 

3.9 Employees Benefits 

a) Short term benefits 
 

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised 
as an expense in the financial period/year in which the associated services 
are rendered by employees of the Company. 

 
b) Defined contribution plans 

 
The Company makes statutory contributions to approved provident funds 
and the contributions made are charged to profit or loss in the period to 
which they relate. When the contributions have been paid, the Company 
has no further payment obligations. 

 
3.10 Provisions 

 
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, 
as a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of economic 
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation 
can be estimated reliably. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an 
outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the 
provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest 
expenses. 
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

 
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the 
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
the asset or liability affected in the future. 

 
4.1  Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies 

 
There were no significant judgements made by management in the process of 
applying the accounting policies of the Company which may have significant effect 
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

 
4.2  Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year are discussed below. 

 
a) Determining the Value-in-Use 

 
In determining the value-in-use of a stand-alone asset or a cash-generating unit, 
management uses reasonable and supportable inputs about sales, costs of sales and 
other expenses based upon past experiences, current events and reasonably possible 
future developments. Cash flows are projected based on those inputs and discounted 
at an appropriate discount rate(s). The actual outcome or event may not coincide with 
the inputs or assumptions and the discount rate applied in the measurement, and this 
may have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position and results. 

b) Loss Allowances of Financial Assets 
 

The Company recognises impairment losses for loans and receivables using the 
incurred loss model. Individually significant loans and receivables are tested for 
impairment separately by estimating the cash flows expected to be recoverable. All 
other loans and receivables are categorised into credit risk classes and tested for 
impairment collectively, using the Company’s past experiences of loss statistics, 
ageing of past due amounts and current economic trends. The actual eventual losses 
may be different from the allowances made and these may affect the Company’s 
financial position and results. 
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c) Measurement of a Provision 

 
The Company uses a “best estimate” as the basis for measuring a provision. 
Management evaluates the estimates based on the Company’s historical experiences 
and other inputs or assumptions, current developments and future events that are 
reasonably possible under the particular circumstances. In the case when a provision 
relates to large population of customers (such as warranty provision), a probability- 
weighted estimate of the outflows required to settle the obligation is used. In the case 
of a single estimate (such as a provision for environmental restoration costs), a 
referenced contractor’s price or market price is used as the best estimate. If an 
obligation is to be settled over time, the expected outflows are discounted at a rate that 
takes into account the time value of money and the risk that the actual outcome might 
differ from the estimates made. The actual outcome may differ from the estimate 
made and this may have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position and 
results. 

 
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 
 Balance at   Balance at 

1.1.2024 
RM 

Additions 
RM 

Disposals 
RM 

31.12.2024 
RM 

Cost 
Computer 

 
14,518 

 
- 

 
- 

 
14,518 

Equipment 24,380 - - 24,380 
 38,898 - - 38,898 

 

Balance at 
1.1.2024 

Additions 
for the year Disposals 

Balance at 
31.12.2024 

RM RM RM RM 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss 
Computer 13,496 1,017 - 14,513 
Equipment 14,628 2,438 - 17,066 

 28,124 3,455 - 31,579 
 

2024 2023 
 RM RM 
Net carrying amount   
Computer 5 1,022 
Equipment 7,314 9,752 

 7,319 10,774  
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6. CONTRIBUTED SHARE CAPITAL  

 2024  2023 
 RM  RM 

Issued and fully paid:    

At beginning and end of year 
100,000 ordinary shares with no par value 

 
 100,000  

  
 100,000  

 
7. OTHER PAYABES AND ACCRUALS 

   

 2024  2023 
 RM  RM 

Amounts owing to related party 247,231 
 

253,811 
Third parties 21,642  27,145 
Accruals 62,477  64,558 

  331,350    345,514  

The amounts owing to related party represent advances and payment on behalf which 
are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and are to be settled in 
cash. 

 
8. OTHER EXPENSES 

 
2024 2023 
RM RM 

 
Depreciation of property, plant equipment  3,455   4,638  

 3,455   4,638  
 
 
 

9. TAX EXPENSE  
  2024 2023 
  RM RM 

 Current income tax expense 
Total tax expense for the year 

 -  
 -  

 -  
 -  
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9. TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 

 
The significant differences between the tax expense and accounting profit/(loss) 
multiplied by the statutory tax rate are due to the tax effects arising from the 
following items: 

 
 2024 

RM 
2023 
RM 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 271,401 (9,973) 
 
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 17% (2023:15%) 

 
46,155 

 
(1,496) 

Tax effects of : 
- reduced tax rate of 15% 

 
(3,000) 

 
- 

- expenses disallowed for tax purpose 798 1,496 
- utilisation of unrecognised deferred tax assets (43,953) - 
Effective tax expense 

 

 -  
 

 -  

As at financial year end, the Company has 

 

unabsorbed  capital 

 

allowance  of 
approximately RM Nil (2023: RM28,530) and unutilised tax losses of approximately 
RM330,743 (2023: RM586,260) which, subject to the agreement with the tax 
authority, are available to set off against future taxable profits. 

 
 

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise: 
 

 2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

Cash and bank balances  143,663   4,121  
Cash and cash equivalents  143,663   4,121  
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11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 

 
As at financial year end, the Company has deferred tax assets arising from the 
following, which is not recognised in financial statements until such time the directors 
are satisfied that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future against which 
the deferred tax assets can be utilised. 

 
 2024 

RM 
 2023 

RM 

Taxable temporary difference (4,881)  (4,876) 
Unabsorbed capital allowance -  28,525 
Unutilised tax losses  330,743    586,259  

 325,862  609,908 

Deferred tax assets not recognised at 17%    

(2023: 15%)  55,397    91,486  
 

The availability of the unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowance for off- 
setting against future taxable profits are subject to no substantial changes in the 
shareholdings of the Company under Section 44(5A) of the Income Tax Act 1967. 

 
 

12. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements of the company were authorised for issue by the Board of 
Directors on the same date as the date of Directors’ Report is being approved. 
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 2024 

RM 
 2023 

RM 
 

REVENUE 305,010 
  

- 

LESS : COST OF SALES 
    

Courier and postage 37   - 
Exam assesment facility 8,400   - 
Examiner fee and expenses 8,220    
Marker fee 2,796   - 
Printing and stationery 111   - 
Travelling expenses 55   - 

 19,619   -  

GROSS PROFIT 285,391 - 
 

 
LESS : OPERATING EXPENSES 
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

 
(10,535) 

 
(5,335) 

OTHER EXPENSES  (3,455)  (4,638) 

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION  271,401   (9,973) 
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SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES    

Management and admin    
Auditors' remuneration 2,000  1,000 
Bank charges 98  16 
IT web maintenance 485  - 
Postage and courier 120  120 
Printing and stationery 200  520 
Secretarial and filing fee 5,930  2,660 
Service tax 172  129 
Tax fee 1,400  700 
Travelling expenses 130  190 

 10,535  5,335 
 

OTHER EXPENSES 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,455 4,638 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024. 

 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The Company is principally engaged in the business of conducting public and in-house 
seminars, forums and related training programmes. 

The Company was dormant during the financial year. 

 
RESULTS 

RM 
 

Profit after tax for the year 271,401 
 
 

DIVIDENDS 

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous 
financial year. The directors do not recommend any dividend payment for the current 
financial year. 

 
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS 

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year. 

 
SHARE OPTIONS 

No options have been granted by the Company to any parties during the financial year to take 
up unissued shares of the Company. 

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of any option to 
take up unissued shares of the Company. As at the end of the financial year, there were no 
unissued shares of the Company under options. 

 
SHARES AND DEBENTURES 

The Company did not issue any new shares or debentures during the financial year. 
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DIRECTORS 

The directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this 
report are: 

 
MOHAMED ACKIEL MOHAMED Resigned on 26.09.2024 
CHEW KHOON HEE  Resigned on 26.09.2024 
WONG WING KIONG Appointed on 26.09.2024 
ONG HOCK GUAN Appointed on 26.09.2024 
TAY CHIA CHAY Appointed on 26.09.2024 

 
 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 
 

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at 
the end of the financial year in the ordinary shares of the Company during the financial year 
were as follows: 

 
Number of ordinary shares 

 As at 
1.1.2024 

 
Bought 

 
Sold 

As at 
31.12.2024 

CHEW KHOON HEE - - - - 
MOHAMED ACKIEL MOHAMED - - - - 
WONG WING KIONG - - - - 
ONG HOCK GUAN - - - - 
TAY CHIA CHAY - - - - 

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS 
    

Since the end of the previous financial year, no directors has received or become entitled to 
receive any benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation 
with any director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in 
which the director has a substantial financial interest except for the related party transactions 
as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. 

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company 
is a party, with the objects of enabling directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means 
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. 



IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 
200001030502 (533109-M) 

3 

 

 

 
OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 

 
(a) Before the financial statements of the Company were prepared, the directors took 

reasonable steps: 

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of 
bad debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts and have satisfied 
themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate 
allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and 

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised at their 
book values in the ordinary course of business have been written down to their 
estimated realisable value. 

(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which 
would render: 

(i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for 
doubtful debts inadequate to any substantial extent in the financial statements 
of the Company; or 

(ii) the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the 
Company misleading. 

(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have 
arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or 
liabilities of the Company misleading or inappropriate. 

(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not 
otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Company which 
would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading. 

(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist: 

(i) any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or 

(ii) any contingent liability of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year. 

(f) In the opinion of the directors: 

(i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial 
year which will or may substantially affect the ability of the Company to meet 
its obligations as and when they fall due; and 

(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the 
interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which 
is likely to affect substantially the results of operations of the Company for the 
financial year in which this report is made. 
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS 

None of directors or past directors of the Company have received any remunerations from the 
Company during the financial year. 

 
INDEMNIFYING DIRECTORS, OFFICERS OR AUDITORS 

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the 
financial year, for any person who is or has been the director, officer or auditor of the 
Company. 

 
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS 

Total amount paid to or receivable by the auditors as remuneration for their statutory audit 
services as auditors for the financial year is RM2,000. 



IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 
200001030502 (533109-M) 

5 

 

 

 
AUDITORS 

The auditors, K.L. NG & CO., have expressed their willingness to be re-appointed. 

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
ONG HOCK GUAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TAY CHIA CHAY 

 
Date : 
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS 
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016 

 
We, ONG HOCK GUAN and TAY CHIA CHAY, being two of the directors of IMM 
RESOURCES SDN. BHD., do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the 
accompanying financial statements comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are drawn up in accordance with 
the Malaysian Private Entities Reporting Standard issued by the Malaysian Accounting 
Standards Board and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

 
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors. 

 
 
 
 

ONG HOCK GUAN TAY CHIA CHAY 
 

Date : 
 

STATUTORY DECLARATION 
Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016 

 
I, ONG HOCK GUAN (I.C No. : 600228-13-5577), being the director primarily responsible 
for the financial management of IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD., do solemnly and sincerely 
declare that the accompanying financial statements comprising the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are in my 
opinion correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be 
true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960. 

 

Subscribed and solemnly declared by 
the abovenamed ONG HOCK GUAN 
at Petaling Jaya in Selangor 
on 

 
Before me, 

 
 
 

 
TAY CHIA CHAY 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS 



K.L. NG & CO. (AF 1478) 
Chartered Accountants 
921, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor 
Darul Ehsan. 
Tel : 03-7887 8895 / 7787 9527, Email: nklgroup@live.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited financial statements of IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Private Entities Reporting 
Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, 
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and 
IESBA Code. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 3.1 to the financial statements which state that the accompanying 
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the 
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business, despite the 
Company has net current liabilities of RM66,537 and a capital deficiency of RM59,218 as at 31 
December 2024. Continuance of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the 
continued financial support from its shareholders. 

 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements of the Company 
and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the Directors’ Report 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to 
read the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Directors’ Report is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
the Directors’ Report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the 
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Malaysian Private Entities 
Reporting Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors 
are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements of the Company that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the 
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards 
on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the 
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the 
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 200001030502 (533109-M) (Cont’d) 

 
 

Other Matters 
 

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with 
Section 266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

K.L. NG & CO. NG KUAN LOONG 
AF 1478 02195/01/2027 J 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant 

 
Petaling Jaya 
Date: 

mailto:nklgroup@live.com
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

 Note 2024  2023 
ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, plant and equipment 

 

 
5 

RM 
 

7,319 

 RM 
 

10,774 
  7,319  10,774 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Trade receivables 

  
 

121,150 

  
 

- 
Cash and bank balances  143,663  4,121 

  264,813  4,121 

TOTAL ASSETS  272,132  14,895 
 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

    

EQUITY 
Contributed share capital 

 
6 

 
100,000 

  
100,000 

Accumulated losses  (159,218)  (430,619) 
TOTAL EQUITY  (59,218)  (330,619) 

 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Other payables and accruals 

 

 
7 

 

 
331,350 

  

 
345,514 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  331,350  345,514 
 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

  
272,132 

  
14,895 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 

Note 
2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

 
Revenue 

  
305,010 

  
- 

Cost of sales   (19,619)   -  
Gross profit/(loss)  285,391  - 
Selling and administrative expenses  (10,535)  (5,335) 
Other expenses 8  (3,455)   (4,638) 
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 
Tax expense 

 
9 

271,401 
- 

 (9,973) 
- 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  271,401  (9,973) 
Other comprehensive income   -    -  
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year   271,401    (9,973) 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

Contributed 
share capital 

Accumulated 
losses Total 

2023 RM RM RM 

 
Balance at 1 January 2023 100,000 (420,646) (320,646) 
Loss for the year - (9,973) (9,973) 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 
Balance at 31 December 2023 100,000 (430,619) (330,619) 

 
 

 
Contributed 

share capital 

Retained 
profits/ 

(Accumulated 
losses) Total 

2024 RM RM RM 
 

Balance at 1 January 2024 100,000 (430,619) (330,619) 
Profit for the year - 271,401 271,401 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 
Balance at 31 December 2024 100,000 (159,218) (59,218) 



IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 
200001030502 (533109-M) 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

15 

 

 

 
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 

2024 2023 
Note RM RM 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from customers 183,860 

 
- 

Cash payments to employees and for expenses  (44,318)  (16) 
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities  139,542   (16) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 139,542 (16) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  4,121   4,137  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 143,663 4,121 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Company is a private company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The 
principal activity of the Company is conducting public and in-house seminars, forums 
and related training programmes. There has been no significant change in the nature 
of the principal activity of the Company during the financial year. 

The registered office of the Company is located at 919, Block A, Kelana Centre Point, 
No. 3, Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor. 

The principal place of business is located at Suite 1006, Level 10, Block A, Kelana 
Centre Point, No. 3 Jalan SS 7/19, Kelana Jaya, 47301 Petaling Jaya, Selangor. 

 
2. COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND THE 

COMPANIES ACT 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Malaysian 
Private Entities Reporting Standard issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
Board and the provisions of the Malaysian Companies Act 2016. 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

3.1 Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared: 
 

(a) using cost and fair value bases; and 
 

(b) by applying the going concern assumption as it is the intention of the 
Company to carry on with the existing business activity, notwithstanding 
that the Company incurred accumulated losses of RM159,218 as 31 
December 2024, and as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities 
exceeded its current assets by RM66,567 thereby indicating the existence 
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the 
Company’s ability to continue as going concern. 

 
3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Operating tangible assets that are used for more than one accounting period in 
the production and supply of goods and services, for administrative purposes 
or for rental to others are recognised as property, plant and equipment when 
the Company obtains control of the assets. The assets, including major spares, 
servicing equipment and stand-by equipment, are classified into appropriate 
classes based on their nature. Any subsequent replacement of a significant 
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component in an existing asset is capitalised as a new component in the asset 
and the old component is derecognised. 

All property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. For a 
purchased asset, cost comprises purchase price plus all directly attributable 
costs incurred in bringing the asset to its present location and condition for 
management’s intended use. For a self-constructed asset, cost comprises all 
direct and indirect costs of construction (including provision for restoration 
and cost of major inspection) but excludes internal profits. 

All property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Freehold land and capital work-in-progress are not depreciated but are subject 
to impairment test if there is any indication of impairment. 

 
All other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is 
calculated on the straight line basis to write off the cost of the assets over their 
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:- 

Computer 20% 
Equipment 10% 

At the end of each reporting period, the residual values, useful lives and 
depreciation methods for the property, plant and equipment are reviewed for 
reasonableness. Any change in estimate of an item is adjusted prospectively 
over its remaining useful life. 

3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
include cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in fair value, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts and pledged deposits. 

3.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

An impairment loss arises when the carrying amount of a Company’s asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 

 
At the end of each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any 
indication that a stand-alone asset or a cash-generating unit may be impaired 
by using external and internal sources of information. If any such indication 
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or cash- 
generating unit. 
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If an individual asset generates independent cash inflows, it is tested for 
impairment as a stand-alone asset. If an asset does not generate independent 
cash inflows, it is tested for impairment together with other assets in a cash- 
generating unit, at the lowest level in which independent cash inflows are 
generated and monitored for internal management purposes. 

 
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of 
its fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. The Company determines 
the fair value less costs to sell of an asset or a cash-generating unit in a 
hierarchy based on: (i) price in a binding sale agreement; (ii) market price 
traded in an active market; and (iii) estimate of market price using the best 
available information. The value in use is estimated by discounting the net 
cash inflows (by an appropriate discount rate) of the asset or unit, using 
reasonable and supportable management’s budgets and forecasts of five years 
and extrapolation of cash inflows for periods beyond the five-year forecast or 
budget. 

For an asset measured on a cost-based model, any impairment loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

 
For a cash-generating unit, any impairment loss is allocated to the assets of the 
unit pro rata based on the relative carrying amounts of the assets. 

 
The Company reassesses the recoverable amount of an impaired asset or a 
cash-generating unit if there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised previously may have reversed. Any reversal of impairment loss for 
an asset carried at a cost-based model is recognised in profit or loss, subject to 
the limit that the revised carrying amount does not exceed the amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised 
previously. 

 
3.5 Contributed Share Capital and Distributions 

(a) Contributed Share Capital 
 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments. 
 

When ordinary shares are issued to existing shareholders, they are recorded at 
the issue price. For ordinary shares issued in exchange for non-monetary 
assets, they are measured by reference to the fair values of the assets received. 

 
When ordinary shares are issued as consideration transferred in a business 
combination or as settlement of an existing financial liability, they are 
measured at their fair value at the date of the exchange transaction. 

 
Transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction 
from equity, net of any related income tax effect. 
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(b) Distributions 

 
Distributions to holders of an equity instrument are recognised as equity 
transactions and are debited directly in equity, net of any related income tax 
effect. 

 
A dividend declared is recognised as a liability only after it has been 
appropriately authorised, which is the date when the Board of Directors 
declares an interim dividend, or in the case of a proposed final dividend, the 
date the shareholders of the Company approve the proposed final dividend. 
For a distribution of non-cash assets to owners, the Company measures the 
dividend payable at the fair value of the assets to be distributed. 

3.6 Financial Instruments 

(a) Initial Recognition and Measurement 
 

The Company recognises a financial asset or a financial liability (including 
derivative instruments) in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 
On initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities are measured 
at fair value, which is generally the transaction price, plus transaction costs if 
the financial asset or financial liability is not measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. For instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss when incurred. 

 
(b) Derecognition of Financial Instruments 

 
A financial asset is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights 
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the Company 
transfers the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, 
including circumstances when the Company acts only as a collecting agent of 
the transferee, and retains no significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset or no continuing involvement in the control of the financial 
asset transferred. 

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, it is legally 
extinguished, which is either when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. A substantial modification of the terms of 
an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the 
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. 

 
(c) Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets 

 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies financial 
assets into two categories, namely: (i) financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss, and (ii) financial assets at amortised cost. 
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After initial recognition, investments in preference shares and ordinary shares 
are measured at their fair values by reference to the active market price, if 
observable, or otherwise by a valuation technique, without any deduction for 
transaction costs it may incur on sale or other disposal. 

 
Investments in debt instruments, whether quoted or unquoted, are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Investments in unquoted equity instruments and whose fair value cannot be 
reliably measured are measured at cost. 
Other than financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, all 
other financial assets are subject to review for impairment in accordance with 
Note 3.6(g). 

 
(d) Subsequent Measurement 

 
After initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. 

 
(e) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments 

 
The fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability is determined by 
reference to the quoted market price in an active market, and in the absence of 
an observable market price, by a valuation technique using reasonable and 
supportable assumptions. 

 
(f) Recognition of Gains and Losses 

 
Fair value changes of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as at 
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss when they 
arise. 

 
For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost, a gain or 
loss is recognised in profit or loss only when the financial asset or financial 
liability is derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process of 
the instrument. 

 
(g) Impairment and Uncollectibility of Financial Assets 

 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company examines whether there is 
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
impaired. Evidences of trigger loss events include: (i) significant difficulty of 
the issuer or obligor; (ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency 
in interest or principal payments; (iii) granting exceptional concession to a 
customer; (iv) it is probable that a customer will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganisation; (v) the disappearance of an active market for that 
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or (vi) any observable market 
data indicating that there may be a measurable decrease in the estimated future 
cash flows from a group of financial assets. 
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For a non-current loan and receivable carried at amortised cost, the revised 
estimated cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate. Any 
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and a corresponding amount is 
recorded in a loss allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of impairment 
loss of the financial asset is reversed in profit or loss with a corresponding 
adjustment to the loss allowance account, subject to the limit that the reversal 
should not result in the revised carrying amount of the financial asset 
exceeding the amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised previously. 

For short-term trade and other receivables, where the effect of discounting is 
immaterial, impairment loss is tested for each individually significant 
receivable wherever there is any indication of impairment. Individually 
significant receivables for which no impairment loss is recognised are grouped 
together with all other receivables by classes based on credit risk 
characteristics and aged according to their past due periods. A collective 
allowance is estimated for a class group based on the Company’s experience 
of loss ratio in each class, taking into consideration current market conditions. 

For an unquoted equity investment measured at cost less impairment, the 
impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the best 
estimate (which will necessarily be an approximation) of the amount (which 
might be zero) that the Company expects to receive for the asset if it were sold 

 
at the reporting date. The Company may estimate the recoverable amount 
using an adjusted net asset value approach. 

 
3.7 Revenue Recognition and Measurement 

The Company measures revenue from a sale of goods or a service transaction at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is usually the 
invoice price, net of any trade discounts and volume rebates given to a customer 
in a sale or service transaction. 

Revenue from a sale of goods and services rendered are recognised when: 

(i) the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of the goods and upon the completion of services rendered; 

(ii) the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the 
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the 
goods sold; 

(iii) the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; 

(iv) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction 
will flow to the Company; and 

(v) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be 
measured reliably. 
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3.8 Income Tax 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the financial period comprises current and 
deferred tax. Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in 
respect of the taxable profit for the year and is measured using the tax rates that 
have been enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences 
at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. In principle, deferred tax 
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits can be utilised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred 
tax is recognised in the income statement, except when it arises from a transaction 
which is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also 
recognised directly in equity. 

3.9 Employees Benefits 

a) Short term benefits 
 

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised 
as an expense in the financial period/year in which the associated services 
are rendered by employees of the Company. 

 
b) Defined contribution plans 

 
The Company makes statutory contributions to approved provident funds 
and the contributions made are charged to profit or loss in the period to 
which they relate. When the contributions have been paid, the Company 
has no further payment obligations. 

 
3.10 Provisions 

 
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation, legal or constructive, 
as a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of economic 
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation 
can be estimated reliably. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an 
outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the 
provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest 
expenses. 
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

 
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the 
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
the asset or liability affected in the future. 

 
4.1  Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies 

 
There were no significant judgements made by management in the process of 
applying the accounting policies of the Company which may have significant effect 
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

 
4.2  Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year are discussed below. 

 
a) Determining the Value-in-Use 

 
In determining the value-in-use of a stand-alone asset or a cash-generating unit, 
management uses reasonable and supportable inputs about sales, costs of sales and 
other expenses based upon past experiences, current events and reasonably possible 
future developments. Cash flows are projected based on those inputs and discounted 
at an appropriate discount rate(s). The actual outcome or event may not coincide with 
the inputs or assumptions and the discount rate applied in the measurement, and this 
may have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position and results. 

b) Loss Allowances of Financial Assets 
 

The Company recognises impairment losses for loans and receivables using the 
incurred loss model. Individually significant loans and receivables are tested for 
impairment separately by estimating the cash flows expected to be recoverable. All 
other loans and receivables are categorised into credit risk classes and tested for 
impairment collectively, using the Company’s past experiences of loss statistics, 
ageing of past due amounts and current economic trends. The actual eventual losses 
may be different from the allowances made and these may affect the Company’s 
financial position and results. 
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c) Measurement of a Provision 

 
The Company uses a “best estimate” as the basis for measuring a provision. 
Management evaluates the estimates based on the Company’s historical experiences 
and other inputs or assumptions, current developments and future events that are 
reasonably possible under the particular circumstances. In the case when a provision 
relates to large population of customers (such as warranty provision), a probability- 
weighted estimate of the outflows required to settle the obligation is used. In the case 
of a single estimate (such as a provision for environmental restoration costs), a 
referenced contractor’s price or market price is used as the best estimate. If an 
obligation is to be settled over time, the expected outflows are discounted at a rate that 
takes into account the time value of money and the risk that the actual outcome might 
differ from the estimates made. The actual outcome may differ from the estimate 
made and this may have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position and 
results. 

 
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 
 Balance at   Balance at 

1.1.2024 
RM 

Additions 
RM 

Disposals 
RM 

31.12.2024 
RM 

Cost 
Computer 

 
14,518 

 
- 

 
- 

 
14,518 

Equipment 24,380 - - 24,380 
 38,898 - - 38,898 

 

Balance at 
1.1.2024 

Additions 
for the year Disposals 

Balance at 
31.12.2024 

RM RM RM RM 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss 
Computer 13,496 1,017 - 14,513 
Equipment 14,628 2,438 - 17,066 

 28,124 3,455 - 31,579 
 

2024 2023 
 RM RM 
Net carrying amount   
Computer 5 1,022 
Equipment 7,314 9,752 

 7,319 10,774  
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6. CONTRIBUTED SHARE CAPITAL  

 2024  2023 
 RM  RM 

Issued and fully paid:    

At beginning and end of year 
100,000 ordinary shares with no par value 

 
 100,000  

  
 100,000  

 
7. OTHER PAYABES AND ACCRUALS 

   

 2024  2023 
 RM  RM 

Amounts owing to related party 247,231 
 

253,811 
Third parties 21,642  27,145 
Accruals 62,477  64,558 

  331,350    345,514  

The amounts owing to related party represent advances and payment on behalf which 
are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and are to be settled in 
cash. 

 
8. OTHER EXPENSES 

 
2024 2023 
RM RM 

 
Depreciation of property, plant equipment  3,455   4,638  

 3,455   4,638  
 
 
 

9. TAX EXPENSE  
  2024 2023 
  RM RM 

 Current income tax expense 
Total tax expense for the year 

 -  
 -  

 -  
 -  
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9. TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 

 
The significant differences between the tax expense and accounting profit/(loss) 
multiplied by the statutory tax rate are due to the tax effects arising from the 
following items: 

 
 2024 

RM 
2023 
RM 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 271,401 (9,973) 
 
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 17% (2023:15%) 

 
46,155 

 
(1,496) 

Tax effects of : 
- reduced tax rate of 15% 

 
(3,000) 

 
- 

- expenses disallowed for tax purpose 798 1,496 
- utilisation of unrecognised deferred tax assets (43,953) - 
Effective tax expense 

 

 -  
 

 -  

As at financial year end, the Company has 

 

unabsorbed  capital 

 

allowance  of 
approximately RM Nil (2023: RM28,530) and unutilised tax losses of approximately 
RM330,743 (2023: RM586,260) which, subject to the agreement with the tax 
authority, are available to set off against future taxable profits. 

 
 

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise: 
 

 2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

Cash and bank balances  143,663   4,121  
Cash and cash equivalents  143,663   4,121  
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11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 

 
As at financial year end, the Company has deferred tax assets arising from the 
following, which is not recognised in financial statements until such time the directors 
are satisfied that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future against which 
the deferred tax assets can be utilised. 

 
 2024 

RM 
 2023 

RM 

Taxable temporary difference (4,881)  (4,876) 
Unabsorbed capital allowance -  28,525 
Unutilised tax losses  330,743    586,259  

 325,862  609,908 

Deferred tax assets not recognised at 17%    

(2023: 15%)  55,397    91,486  
 

The availability of the unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowance for off- 
setting against future taxable profits are subject to no substantial changes in the 
shareholdings of the Company under Section 44(5A) of the Income Tax Act 1967. 

 
 

12. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements of the company were authorised for issue by the Board of 
Directors on the same date as the date of Directors’ Report is being approved. 



IMM RESOURCES SDN. BHD. 
200001030502 (533109-M) 

( For management purposes only) 

 

 

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 2024 

RM 
 2023 

RM 
 

REVENUE 305,010 
  

- 

LESS : COST OF SALES 
    

Courier and postage 37   - 
Exam assesment facility 8,400   - 
Examiner fee and expenses 8,220    
Marker fee 2,796   - 
Printing and stationery 111   - 
Travelling expenses 55   - 

 19,619   -  

GROSS PROFIT 285,391 - 
 

 
LESS : OPERATING EXPENSES 
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

 
(10,535) 

 
(5,335) 

OTHER EXPENSES  (3,455)  (4,638) 

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION  271,401   (9,973) 
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SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
2024 
RM 

2023 
RM 

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES    

Management and admin    
Auditors' remuneration 2,000  1,000 
Bank charges 98  16 
IT web maintenance 485  - 
Postage and courier 120  120 
Printing and stationery 200  520 
Secretarial and filing fee 5,930  2,660 
Service tax 172  129 
Tax fee 1,400  700 
Travelling expenses 130  190 

 10,535  5,335 
 

OTHER EXPENSES 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,455 4,638 


